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> f inancial  highl ights
(In thousands except per share data)    2004  2003 

Net sales $ 681,795 $  606,665

Goodwill impairment charge $ (183,450) $ –

Operating (loss) income $ (125,570) $  58,370

Diluted (loss) income per share $ (4.09) $ 0.94

Working capital $ 123,317 $ 72,832

Total assets $ 474,578 $ 573,001

Long-term debt $ 200,052 $ 200,245

Shareholders’ equity $ 155,605 $ 243,406

ABOUT > this repor t
In 2004, the people of Stoneridge worked diligently to 

enhance the effectiveness of the organization and to set the 

Company’s strategies in motion. With a new management 

team and organizational structure in place – combined 

with the Company’s market and technology expertise 

that is unmatched among competitors – Stoneridge is 

now positioned to take its performance to the next level.  

Initiatives in the areas of product/technology, global 

expansion, lean operations and an embedded culture of 

learning and adapting will drive the Company’s progress as 

it strives to meet its full potential with continued profitable 

growth and improved returns to shareholders.

ABOUT > the company
Stoneridge, Inc., headquartered in Warren, Ohio, is a leading independent designer and manufacturer of highly engineered 

electrical and electronic components, modules and systems principally for the automotive, medium- and heavy-duty 

truck, agricultural and off-highway vehicle markets. The Company has two reportable segments: Vehicle Management 

and Power Distribution, which includes electronic instrument clusters, electronic control units, driver information 

systems and electrical distribution systems; and Control Devices, which includes electronic and electromechanical 

switches, control actuation devices, sensors and driver information systems. Additional information about Stoneridge 

can be found at www.stoneridge.com.



TO OUR

          shareholders

>

>

>

>

>

>

We understand that the automotive and commercial vehicle 

markets which we serve are global and hyper-competitive. 

Throughout the world, every region is experiencing overca-

pacity and our customers’ market share is under attack. Over 

the long term, industry consolidation and market growth will 

resolve these issues. But meanwhile, operating margins for 

suppliers will remain under pressure.

 There is no unique business model that will 

insulate us from these market pressures. Therefore, we 

have selected a combination of strategies that will allow us 

to remain in the top quartile of our peer group:

> We intend to use a combination of accelerated organic 

growth along with acquisitions outside North America 

to restore our growth rate to historic levels. Global 

expansion will allow us to leverage our design and 

development spending over a larger customer population 

and diversify our customer mix to hedge the shift in their 

market shares. Year over year, we are spending more 

on design and development. This is a disciplined, gated 

process to ensure that our resources are allocated to the 

most promising programs.

> We have taken measures to improve our return on invested 

capital through lean enterprise efficiency and Six Sigma 

design and process optimization.

> We will continue the evolution of our best-cost producer 

strategies including:

– Developing an integrated global supply chain to help 

offset rising costs of raw materials.

– Product life-cycle management to neutralize the effect 

of price erosion and rising raw material costs. This is 

accomplished by pursuing a dominant share of the 

market on new applications, engineered cost reductions 

during the life cycle, and continued development of 

improved products to replace existing products.

– Design for Six Sigma capability to achieve flawless 

new-product launches and minimize warranty expense.

> We accept the fact that to achieve sustainable 

competitive advantage, we must be committed to 

continuous learning and provide an environment of 

empowerment for our associates. This is the foundation 

of our corporate culture, and our associates have 

accepted this challenge.

As part of the Stoneridge team since 1988, I have gained the utmost respect for and confidence 

in our associates and our Company. It is indeed a privilege to be asked to lead our organization 

at this exciting point in our history, as we take our performance to the next level.

– Gerald V. Pisani

Seated: D.M. Draime, Standing: Gerald V. Pisani



Among our many achievements in 2004, our net sales 

increased by 12 percent to $681.8 million. This increase 

in sales was primarily due to stronger performance in the 

Company’s commercial vehicle business, which more than 

offset the decline in traditional domestic North American 

light vehicle production.

 We reported a net loss of $92.5 million, or $4.09 

per diluted share, which included a non-cash goodwill 

impairment charge of $183.5 million ($119.8 million 

after tax benefits) related to the Company’s change in our 

strategic growth initiative, and our resulting focus on the 

design and development of highly engineered products by 

operating units in four distinct segments – electronics, 

sensors, control devices, and power and signal distribution. 

Statement of Financial Accounting Standard 142, “Goodwill 

and Other Intangible Assets,” requires the Company to 

conduct an annual test for goodwill impairment at a more 

disaggregated level due to the Company’s realignment into 

these four operating units.

 Excluding the goodwill impairment charge, net 

income for 2004 would have been $27.2 million, or $1.19 

per diluted share, compared with $21.4 million, or $0.94 per 

diluted share, for the prior year. Our broad range of initiatives 

helped us improve our operating performance so that our 

earnings, excluding the non-cash goodwill impairment 

charge, were within the range that we expected.

 During the past year, we have worked diligently to 

improve the effectiveness of our organization and to set our 

strategies in motion. We have an excellent management 

team in place. Ed Mosel, who was named Chief Operating 

Officer in June 2004, has been instrumental in the organic 

and acquisition growth of Stoneridge’s businesses, especially 

the Switch and Sensor Group, which demonstrated sustained 

growth under his leadership. In September 2004, Joe Mallak 

joined Stoneridge as Chief Financial Officer. His industrial, 

financial and managerial experience adds exceptional value 

to our management team.

 In the Vehicle Management and Power Distribution 

reportable segment, which is primarily focused on commercial 

vehicles, all electronic business units are now under one 

executive, Mark Tervalon. Power and Signal Distribution 

remains under Mike Bagby. In the Control Devices reportable 

segment, which is primarily focused on automotive 

applications, Switch Products and Motor Actuators have 

been consolidated under Vince Suttmeier. Sensors and 

Solenoid Actuators are under Mark Oakes. Each of these 

executives holds the title of Group Vice President and 

General Manager, with the responsibility for global product 

management, product development, and manufacturing in 

their segments, and each of them reports to Ed Mosel.

 Sales and Applications Engineering activities are 

now under the management of Tom Beaver, Vice President 

of Global Sales and Systems Engineering. This will enable 

Stoneridge to speak to our customers with one voice and 

will enhance our ability to deliver the complete Stoneridge 

portfolio of products and services to our global customers 

wherever we serve them.

 These changes are helping us to better utilize 

our design and development resources, improve our 

purchasing leverage and coordinate our global account 

management and marketing strategy. In today’s seamless 

economy, our customers expect us to manage the 

challenge of global platform launch and supply, and we 

are meeting the challenge.

 This organizational structure also broadens the 

leadership team for more effective succession planning 
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2004 Achievements

     



and provides a reasonable span of control for a growth-

oriented company.

 Another notable accomplishment in 2004 included 

our joint venture with the Minda Group, based in New Delhi, 

India, to develop and manufacture electronic instrumentation 

and vehicle information management systems for the Indian 

market. As this region moves to mandated electronically 

controlled engines to reduce air pollution, our compatible 

electronic display technology will replace existing electro-

mechanical gauges.

 The India automotive and truck markets are expected 

to continue to grow 8% to 10% per year. Our relationship with 

the Minda Group will offer other opportunities for technology 

transfer and product outsourcing in this growing region.

 Another important step in our effort to expand our 

global operations was the opening of a representative office 

in Shanghai, China. This office will enhance our capability to 

manage our existing base of suppliers in China, as well as 

secure new low-cost supply sources of components for use 

in our manufacturing operations. 

 

 

2005 – The Next Level

Stoneridge made substantial progress in 2004 with the 

actions we took to improve our organization and our global 

capabilities. For the coming year, we will need to address 

further the consolidation of facilities in the United States 

and England to lower our overhead costs. Our migration of 

mature products to low-cost regions continues. 

 We remain committed to our lean enterprise 

initiative, which has allowed us to achieve higher levels 

of efficiency. 

 We also plan to continue our global expansion by 

pursuing further acquisitions in Europe and establishing 

manufacturing capabilities in China. This is particularly 

important strategically, as original equipment manufacturers 

move to global vehicle platforms. China will be our base for 

future business development in Asia. We now have an Asia- 

Pacific business development team in place and a newly 

appointed Director of Business Development for this region.

 In 2005, we expect our progress to continue 

as we strive to reach the next level in everything we 

do. The following pages of this annual report discuss 

how we are moving to higher levels in four important 

areas – products and technology, global expansion, lean 

operations, and establishment of a learning culture – and 

how our achievements in these areas will drive improved 

performance for our Company as a whole.

 We thank our associates for their outstanding 

effort and dedication to helping Stoneridge achieve its 

full potential, and we thank you, our shareholders, for your 

continued support.

Sincerely,

Gerald V. Pisani, President and Chief Executive Officer

D.M Draime, Chairman of the Board of Directors

February 28, 2005

     



FOCUS ON > product / technology

  

There are many suppliers of electrical and electronic 

products to the automotive and truck manufacturing 

industries, but few are as diversified as Stoneridge. And 

as vehicles become more sophisticated, their electronic 

content will grow, which spells greater opportunity for the 

Company’s technologies.

 Occupant safety and emission controls are among 

the key drivers of the expanding electrical content in cars 

and trucks around the world. Stoneridge is developing and 

enhancing technologies in these areas which include active 

safety, crash avoidance and stability control, as well as 

exhaust treatment and high-temperature sensing. Currently, 

the Company is seeing growing demand for seat track 

position sensors used in connection with airbag systems, 

wheel speed sensors for anti-lock brake systems, and 

high-temperature sensors for diesel engines. In Europe, 

legislation is mandating digital tachograph systems that 

log statistics such as truck drivers’ time and miles driven. 

The Company has developed EU-approved products for  

this application.

 Stoneridge is committed to continue providing the 

electronics, sensors and control devices that automotive 

and commercial vehicle manufacturers need to improve 

their products in these and other areas. To meet this 

challenge, the Company will pursue strategic acquisitions 

to complement its existing technologies, while also focusing 

internally on the design and development of new and better 

products that will provide greater growth opportunities. 

CURRENT

> Differentiation through technology and product diversity

> Emphasis on highly engineered elements of vehicle 

   electrical systems

> Flexible product designs that can be customized for 

   the end-user

THE NEXT LEVEL

>  Strategic additions to technology portfolio through acquisition 

and licensing

>  Serving the growing need for electronics and electronic sensors 

within vehicles

>  Increase spending on design and development and fully inte-

grate Six Sigma into the process

From the earliest conceptual stages all the way to the testing stage prior to market, Stoneridge has the engineering talent and 
state-of-the-art resources to ensure delivery of world-class products to its customers.
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FOCUS ON > global expansion

A global network of manufacturing and design centers, along with sales and engineering 
suppor t of f ices, enables Stoneridge to meet the needs of major geographic markets.

CURRENT

> Expanded and integrated European sales force

> Expanding global footprint including joint venture in India 

and offi ces in China and Japan

> Formation of Asia-Pacifi c business development team

THE NEXT LEVEL

> A fully developed global footprint to serve customers on a 

worldwide basis through:

 – Advanced business development

 – Design and manufacturing

 – Sales and customer engineering

At the close of 2004, Stoneridge’s global network consisted 

of 21 manufacturing and design centers, and 11 sales and 

engineering support offi ces at various locations around the 

world. The Company signifi cantly expanded its presence in 

Asia during the year with the establishment of an electronic 

instrumentation joint venture in India with the Minda Group, 

the opening of a purchasing offi ce in Shanghai, China, and 

the formation of a business development team to focus on 

the rapidly growing Asia-Pacifi c region.

 While China and India are expected to represent 

the greatest growth markets for Stoneridge in the coming 

years, opportunities also exist in Latin America and Europe. 

The Company’s joint venture in Brazil has broadened its 

capabilities to serve both the OEM and aftermarket segments. 

In Europe, the Company maintains a solid base of operations 

in four countries, as a result of prior acquisitions.

 Stoneridge intends to continue expanding globally 

to meet the needs of its key customers as well as new 

customers in growing geographic markets. To increase its 

competitive edge, the Company is leveraging its purchasing 

on a global basis, and consolidating its number of suppliers.  

Global expansion will also allow the Company to leverage 

its technology capabilities to serve a more diverse 

customer base.

>

>

>

>

>

>



FOCUS ON > lean operations

In recent years, Stoneridge has significantly improved its 

manufacturing efficiency through the implementation of Six 

Sigma and lean initiatives. These have included cost-effec-

tive automation and semi-automated cell manufacturing 

where appropriate, and have resulted in cost savings, pro-

ductivity improvement and reduced investment in working 

capital. Through these programs, the Company’s associates 

are able to analyze problems, develop solutions, minimize 

deviations and eliminate non-value-added activities in all 

processes.

 The transition of manufacturing to low-cost loca-

tions around the world is enabling the Company to provide 

global sourcing capability to meet the needs of its key 

customers while maintaining low operating costs. Making 

operations leaner and more efficient will help ensure that 

Stoneridge remains a competitive supplier to customers in 

all of its geographic markets.

 As Stoneridge evolves from a multi-regional to a 

true global company, it will continue to seek out and imple-

ment opportunities to improve efficiency and reduce costs. 

It is extending its successful Six Sigma and lean enterprise 

initiatives to include the design and administrative func-

tions so that the entire organization will be instilled with 

a culture dedicated to eliminating waste and streamlining 

processes wherever possible.

CURRENT

> Multi-regional

> Lean operations

> Shifting production to low-cost countries

THE NEXT LEVEL

> A globally competitive, fully lean enterprise

> Integrating Six Sigma into the design and administrative 

processes

> Best-in-class performance, enterprise-wide

Stoneridge’s lean production system, as exempli f ied by its electronics faci l ity in Juarez, Mexico, enables it  
to be global ly competit ive and to maintain sol id operating per formance in a chal lenging industr y.
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As an organization dedicated to a learning culture, Stoneridge provides the means for teams to share best 
practices and technologies worldwide, with a par t icular emphasis on lean production methodologies and tools 
such as Six Sigma.

CURRENT

> Instruction and training

> Formation of corporate best-practices councils 

> Developing the tool chest 

THE NEXT LEVEL

> An organization aligned with Stoneridge’s strategic and 

financial objectives

>  Performance-based culture where individuals and groups 

are rewarded based on merit

>  Enterprise-wide passion to adopt and rapidly deploy best 

practices

FOCUS ON > learning culture

>

>

>

>

>

>

Stoneridge is dedicated to fostering a corporate-wide cul-

ture focused on learning, improving and continually raising 

the performance bar. Its organizational structure empowers 

managers and teams to make decentralized decisions and 

rewards exceptional performance of individuals and groups. 

At the same time, it also promotes synergies through the 

sharing of best practices and technologies, leveraging of 

purchasing activities, and standardization of systems. Busi-

nesses are run as investment centers, motivated to achieve 

exceptional results and measured on the basis of return on 

investment, customer service and growth.

 The Company’s long-term strategic goals repre-

sent the common purpose for everyone at Stoneridge. While 

working together toward this common purpose, all associ-

ates will understand the discipline necessary to achieve 

that purpose. They will focus on collective intelligence, 

which will enable all associates to see the broad picture. 

The learning culture will also promote passion and dedica-

tion toward adopting and deploying best practices.



2005 > the next level

The entire Stoneridge organization is making a concer ted ef for t to meet these goals. The results 

of the Company’s progress toward achieving these objectives in 2005 wil l  be communicated in 

next year’s annual repor t.

>

>

>

>

>

>

The preceding pages outlined Stoneridge’s plans for reaching 

higher levels of performance through achievements in 

product and technology, global expansion, lean operations, 

and the development of a learning culture. For 2005, the 

Company’s progress in each of these areas will be measured 

on the basis of how well it meets the goals listed below.

 These strategic goals fall into three categories: 

goals of purpose (developing and producing quality products, 

serving customers, competing effectively, strengthening 

supplier relationships); identity goals (work environment 

and quality of the organization, personnel decisions, motiva-

tion, discipline, reward, responsibility); and fiduciary goals 

(balancing needs of stakeholders and shareholders, utilization 

of human, financial and material capital).

Goals of Purpose

> Broaden our customer base in our served market

> Align with customers who value our business proposition

> Become a fully capable supplier in every major geo-

graphical region of the world

> Strengthen our competitive position through:

– Targeted applications where we can exploit a 

distinctive advantage

– Strong marketing capabilities and knowledge of 

competition, technology trends, system architec-

ture and other key data

– Innovative design and development

– Demonstrating lean management of all processes

Identity Goals

> Establish formal programs at each operating unit 

to nurture a culture of continuous learning and 

empowerment of associates

> Guide and motivate associates to achieve their 

full potential and measure success through their 

accomplishments

> Become a merit-based organization where recognition, 

reward and longevity of employment are based on 

demonstrated performance

Fiduciary Goals

> Attain a return on invested capital that is consistently in 

the upper quartile of our peer group

> Achieve a minimum of 8 percent compounded revenue 

growth rate over a five-year period through a combina-

tion of:

– Accelerated organic growth

– Regional acquisitions

– Joint ventures, technology agreements and product 

line acquisitions

> Mitigate effects of customer price-downs and higher 

material and labor costs by:

– Expanding global footprint 

– Developing a best-cost producer global supply chain

– Optimizing product life-cycle management
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Forward-Looking Statements

Portions of this report contain ‘‘forward-looking statements’’ under the Private Securities Litigation
Reform Act of 1995. These statements appear in a number of places in this report and include
statements regarding the intent, belief or current expectations of the Company, its directors or its
officers with respect to, among other things, the Company’s (i) future product and facility expansion,
(ii) acquisition strategy, (iii) investments and new product development, and (iv) growth opportunities
related to awarded business. Forward-looking statements may be identified by the words ‘‘will,’’ ‘‘may,’’
‘‘designed to,’’ ‘‘believes,’’ ‘‘plans,’’ ‘‘expects,’’ ‘‘continue,’’ and similar words and expressions. The
forward-looking statements in this report are subject to risks and uncertainties that could cause actual
events or results to differ materially from those expressed in or implied by the statements. Important
factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those in the forward-looking statements
include, among other factors:

) the loss of a major customer;

) a significant change in automotive, medium- and heavy-duty truck or agricultural and off-highway
vehicle production;

) a significant change in general economic conditions in any of the various countries in which the
Company operates;

) labor disruptions at the Company’s facilities or at any of the Company’s significant customers or
suppliers;

) the ability of the Company’s suppliers to supply it with parts and components at competitive prices
on a timely basis;

) the amount of debt and the restrictive covenants contained in the Company’s credit facility;

) customer acceptance of new products;

) capital availability or costs, including changes in interest rates or market perceptions of the
Company;

) changes by the Financial Accounting Standards Board or the Securities and Exchange Commission
of authoritative generally accepted accounting principles or policies;

) the successful integration of any acquired businesses;

) the impact of laws and regulations, including the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and environmental
laws and regulations; and

) the occurrence or non-occurrence of circumstances beyond the Company’s control.

PART I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

The Company

Founded in 1965, the Company is a leading, technology driven, independent designer and manufac-
turer of highly engineered electrical and electronic components, modules and systems for the automo-
tive, medium- and heavy-duty truck, agricultural and off-highway vehicle markets. Our custom-engineered
products are predominantly sold on a sole-source basis and consist of application-specific control
devices, sensors, vehicle management electronics and power and signal distribution systems. These
products comprise the elements of every vehicle’s electrical system, and individually interface with a
vehicle’s mechanical and electrical systems to (i) activate equipment and accessories, (ii) display and
monitor vehicle performance and (iii) control and distribute electrical power and signals. Our products
improve the performance, safety, convenience and environmental monitoring capabilities of our custom-
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ers’ vehicles. As such, the growth in many of the product areas in which we compete is driven by the
increasing consumer desire for safety, security and convenience coupled with the need for original
equipment manufacturers (‘‘OEM’’) to meet safety requirements in addition to the general trend of
increased electrical and electronic content per vehicle. Our technology and our partnership-oriented
approach to product design and development enables us to develop next-generation products and to be a
leader in the transition from mechanical-based components and systems to electrical and electronic
components, modules and systems.

Products

The Company conducts its business in two reportable segments: Vehicle Management & Power
Distribution and Control Devices. As a result of the change in the Company’s executive management in
2004, the Company changed its strategic growth initiative and is now focused on the design and
development of highly engineered products by four operating segments. Under the provisions of State-
ment of Accounting Standard (SFAS) 131, ‘‘Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related
Information,’’ two of these four operating segments are aggregated for reporting purposes into the
Company’s Vehicle Management & Power Distribution reportable segment and two are aggregated into
the Company’s Control Devices reportable segment. The core products of the Vehicle Management &
Power Distribution reportable segment include vehicle electrical power and distribution systems and
electronic instrumentation and information display products. The core products of the Control Devices
reportable segment include electronic and electrical switches, actuation devices, sensors and informa-
tion display products. The Company designs and manufactures the following vehicle parts:

Vehicle Management & Power Distribution. The Vehicle Management & Power Distribution reporta-
ble segment produces electronic instrument clusters, electronic control units, driver information sys-
tems and electrical distribution systems, primarily wiring harnesses and connectors for electrical power
and signal distribution. These products collect, store and display vehicle information such as speed,
pressure, maintenance data, trip information, operator performance, temperature, distance traveled and
driver messages related to vehicle performance. In addition, power distribution systems regulate,
coordinate and direct the operation of the entire electrical system within a vehicle compartment. These
products use state-of-the-art hardware, software and multiplexing technology and are sold principally to
the medium- and heavy-duty truck, agricultural and off-highway vehicle markets.

Control Devices. The Control Devices reportable segment produces products that monitor, mea-
sure or activate a specific function within the vehicle. Product lines included within the Control Devices
reportable segment are electronic and electromechanical switches, control actuation devices, sensors
and driver information systems. Switches transmit a signal that activate specific functions. Hidden
switches are not typically seen by vehicle passengers, but are used to activate or deactivate selected
functions. Customer activated switches are used by a vehicle’s operator or passengers to manually
activate headlights, rear defrosters and other accessories. The Company designs and manufactures
electromechanical actuator products that enable users to deploy power functions in a vehicle and can be
designed to integrate switching and control functions. Sensor products are employed in most major
vehicle systems, including the emissions, safety, powertrain, braking, climate control, and steering and
suspension systems. The Company sells these products principally to the automotive market.
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The following table presents the Company’s core product lines by reportable segment, as a percent-
age of net sales:

For the Years Ended
December 31,

2004 2003 2002

Vehicle Management & Power Distribution:
Vehicle electrical and power distribution systems ****************** 28% 25% 23%
Electronic instrumentation and information display products ******** 20 17 15

48% 42% 38%

Control Devices:
Actuator and sensor products *********************************** 27% 31% 36%
Switch and position sensor products ***************************** 25 27 26

52% 58% 62%

See Note 12 to the Company’s consolidated financial statements for more information on the Company’s
reportable segments and financial information about geographic areas.

Production Materials

The principal raw production materials used in both reportable segments in connection with the
Company’s manufacturing processes primarily include: wire, cable, resins, printed circuit boards, metal
stamping and certain electrical components such as microprocessors, memories, resistors, capacitors,
fuses, relays and connectors. The Company purchases such materials pursuant to both annual contract
and spot purchasing methods. Such materials are readily available from multiple sources, but the
Company generally establishes collaborative relationships with a qualified supplier for each of its key
production materials in order to lower costs and enhance service and quality.

Patents and Intellectual Property

Both of the Company’s reportable segments maintain and have pending various U.S. and foreign
patents and other rights to intellectual property relating to its business, which the Company believes are
appropriate to protect the Company’s interests in existing products, new inventions, manufacturing
processes and product developments. The Company does not believe any single patent is material to its
business, nor would the expiration or invalidity of any patent have a material adverse effect on its
business or its ability to compete. The Company is not currently engaged in any material infringement
litigation, nor are there any material infringement claims pending by or against the Company.

Industry Cyclicality and Seasonality

The markets for both reportable segments of the Company’s products have historically been cyclical.
Because the Company’s products are used principally in the production of vehicles for the automotive,
medium- and heavy-duty truck, agricultural and off-highway vehicle markets, its sales, and therefore its
results of operations, are significantly dependent on the general state of the economy and other factors,
which affect these markets. A decline in automotive, medium- and heavy-duty truck, agricultural and off-
highway vehicle production of the Company’s principal customers could adversely impact the Company.
Approximately 46%, 53% and 57% of the Company’s net sales in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively,
were made to the automotive market. Approximately 54%, 47% and 43% of the Company’s net sales in
2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, were derived from the medium- and heavy-duty truck, agricultural
and off-highway vehicle markets.
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The Company typically experiences decreased sales during the third calendar quarter of each year
due to the impact of scheduled OEM plant shutdowns in July for vacations and new model changeovers.
The fourth quarter is similarly impacted by plant shutdowns for the holidays.

Reliance on Major Customers

The Company is dependent on a small number of principal customers for a significant percentage of
its sales. The loss of any significant portion of its sales to these customers or the loss of a significant
customer would have a material adverse impact on the financial condition and results of operations of
the Company. The Company supplies numerous different parts to each of its principal customers. The
contracts the Company has entered into with many of its customers provide for supplying the customers’
requirements for a particular model, rather than for manufacturing a specific quantity of products. Such
contracts range from one year to the life of the model, which is generally three to seven years.
Therefore, the loss of a contract for a major model or a significant decrease in demand for certain key
models or group of related models sold by any of the Company’s major customers could have a material
adverse impact on the Company. The Company may also enter into contracts to supply parts, the
introduction of which may then be delayed or not used at all. The Company also competes to supply
products for successor models and is subject to the risk that the customer will not select the Company to
produce products on any such model, which could have a material adverse impact on the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company.

The following table presents the Company’s major customers, as a percentage of net sales:
For the Years Ended

December 31,
2004 2003 2002

Customer:
International **************************************************** 21% 17% 13%
DaimlerChrysler ************************************************* 11 11 13
Volvo*********************************************************** 8 7 6
Ford *********************************************************** 7 9 10
General Motors************************************************** 7 9 10
Deere ********************************************************** 6 5 6
Other ********************************************************** 40 42 42

Total ********************************************************* 100% 100% 100%

Backlog

The majority of the Company’s products are not on a backlog status. They are produced from readily
available materials and have a relatively short manufacturing cycle. Each production facility of the
Company maintains its own inventories and production schedules. Production capacity is adequate to
handle current requirements and will be expanded to handle increased growth when needed.

Competition

Markets for the Company’s products in both reportable segments are highly competitive. The
principal methods of competition are quality, service, price, timely delivery and technological innovation.
The Company competes for new business both at the beginning of the development of new models and
upon the redesign of existing models. New model development generally begins two to five years before
the marketing of such models to the public. Once a supplier has been selected to provide parts for a new
program, an OEM usually will continue to purchase those parts from the selected supplier for the life of
the program, although not necessarily for any model redesigns.

5



Our diversity in products creates a wide range of competitors, which vary depending on both market
and geographic location. The Company competes successfully based on its strong customer relations
and a fast and flexible organization that develops technically effective solutions at or below target price.

Product Development

Research and development within the Company is largely product development oriented and con-
sists primarily of applying known technologies to customer generated problems and situations. The
Company works closely with its customers to creatively solve problems using innovative technologies.
The vast majority of the Company’s development expenses are related to customer-sponsored programs
where the Company is involved in designing custom-engineered solutions for specific applications or for
next-generation technology. To further the Company’s vehicle platform penetration, it has also devel-
oped collaborative relationships with the design and engineering departments of its key customers.
These collaborative efforts have resulted in the development of new and complimentary products and the
enhancement of existing products.

Development work at the Company is largely performed on a decentralized basis. The Company has
engineering and product development departments located at a majority of its manufacturing facilities.
To ensure knowledge sharing among decentralized development efforts, the Company has instituted a
number of mechanisms and practices whereby innovation and best practices are shared. The decentral-
ized product development operations are complimented by larger technology groups in Canton, Massa-
chusetts and Stockholm, Sweden.

The Company uses efficient and quality oriented work processes to address its customers’ high
standards. The Company’s product development technical resources include a full compliment of com-
puter-aided design and engineering (‘‘CAD/CAE’’) software systems, including (i) virtual three-dimen-
sional modeling, (ii) functional simulation and analysis capabilities and (iii) data links for rapid
prototyping. These CAD/CAE systems enable the Company to expedite product design and the manufac-
turing process to shorten the development time and ultimately time to market.

The Company is further strengthening its electrical engineering competencies through investment in
equipment such as (i) automotive electro-magnetic compliance test chambers, (ii) programmable auto-
motive and commercial vehicle transient generators, (iii) circuit simulators and (iv) other environmental
test equipment. Additional investment in product machining equipment has allowed the Company to
fabricate new product samples in a fraction of the time required historically. The Company’s product
development and validation efforts are supported by full service, on-site test labs at most manufacturing
facilities, thus enabling its cross-functional engineering teams to optimize the product, process and
system performance before tooling initiation.

The Company has invested, and will continue to invest in technology to develop new products for its
customers. Research and development costs incurred in connection with the development of new
products and manufacturing methods, to the extent not recoverable from the customer, are charged to
selling, general and administrative expenses, as incurred. Such costs amounted to approximately
$36.1 million, $28.7 million and $25.3 million for 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, or 5.3%, 4.7%
and 4.0% of net sales for these periods.

Environmental and Other Regulations

The Company’s operations are subject to various federal, state, local and foreign laws and regula-
tions governing, among other things, emissions to air, discharge to waters and the generation, handling,
storage, transportation, treatment and disposal of waste and other materials. The Company believes
that its business, operations and facilities have been and are being operated in compliance, in all
material respects, with applicable environmental and health and safety laws and regulations, many of
which provide for substantial fines and criminal sanctions for violations.
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Employees

As of December 31, 2004, the Company had approximately 6,000 employees, approximately 1,600
of whom were salaried and the balance of whom were paid on an hourly basis. The Company’s
employees are not represented by a union except for certain employees located in Mexico, Sweden, and
the United Kingdom. The Company believes that its relations with its employees are good.

Available Information

The Company makes available, free of charge through its web site (www.stoneridge.com), its Annual
Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K, all amendments to
those reports, and other filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission (‘‘SEC’’), as soon as
reasonably practicable after they are filed with the SEC. The Company’s Corporate Governance Guide-
lines, Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, Code of Ethics for Senior Financial Officers, Whistleblower
Policy and Procedures and the charters of the Board of Director’s Audit, Compensation and Nominating
and Corporate Governance Committees are posted on the Company’s website. Written copies of these
documents will be available to any shareholder upon request. Requests should be directed to Investor
Relations.

Executive Officers of the Registrant

Each executive officer of the Company is appointed by the Board of Directors, serves at its pleasure
and holds office until a successor is appointed, or until the earlier of death, resignation or removal. The
Board of Directors generally appoints executive officers annually. The executive officers of the Company
are as follows:

Name Age Position

D.M. Draime ********************** 71 Chairman of the Board of Directors and
Assistant Secretary

Gerald V. Pisani ******************* 64 President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
Edward F. Mosel ****************** 55 Executive Vice President and Chief Operating

Officer
Joseph M. Mallak****************** 39 Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and

Treasurer
Thomas A. Beaver ***************** 51 Vice President of Global Sales and Systems

Engineering
Michael J. Bagby ****************** 62 Vice President and General Manager of the

Alphabet Group
Andrew M. Oakes****************** 46 Vice President and General Manager of the

Actuator and Sensor Products Group
Mark J. Tervalon******************* 38 Vice President and General Manager of the

Stoneridge Electronics Group
Vincent F. Suttmeier *************** 47 Vice President and General Manager of the

Switch and Sensor Products Group
Avery S. Cohen******************** 68 Secretary and Director

D.M. Draime, Chairman of the Board of Directors and Assistant Secretary. Mr. Draime, founder of
the Company, has served as Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company and its predecessors
since 1965. Mr. Draime served as Interim President and Chief Executive Officer from January 2004 to
May 2004, when Gerald V. Pisani was named as President and Chief Executive Officer.

Gerald V. Pisani, President, Chief Executive Officer and Director. Mr. Pisani has served as Vice
President of the Company since 1989 and President of the Stoneridge Engineered Products Group since
1992. Mr. Pisani became the Company’s Chief Operating Officer in December 2003 and the Company’s
President and Chief Executive Officer in May 2004.
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Edward F. Mosel, Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer. Mr. Mosel served as Vice
President of Pollak Sales and Marketing from 1987 to 1993, Vice President and General Manager of
Pollak Central Services from 1993 to 1995, and Vice President and General Manager of the Switch
Products Division from 1996 to 2000, at which time he became Vice President and General Manager of
the Switch and Sensor Products Group. Mr. Mosel became the Company’s Executive Vice President and
Chief Operating Officer in June 2004.

Joseph M. Mallak, Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer. Mr. Mallak has served
as Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of the Company since September 2004. Prior to
his employment with the Company, Mr. Mallak served as Vice President and Division Chief Financial
Officer for the Greenlee Group, a unit of Textron Inc., from 2002 to 2004. He held various executive
financial positions with Wilson Leather from 1999 to 2002, he was the Corporate Controller for Century
Aluminum Company from 1997 to 1999, and he held various financial positions for Ford Motor Company
from 1987 to 1992.

Thomas A. Beaver, Vice President of Global Sales and Systems Engineering. Mr. Beaver has
served as Vice President of Sales and Systems Engineering of the Stoneridge Engineered Products Group
from 1995 to 1999, and Vice President of Sales and Marketing from 2000 to 2004, when he became
Vice President of Global Sales and Systems Engineering.

Michael J. Bagby, Vice President and General Manager of the Alphabet Group. Mr. Bagby has
served as Vice President of the Alphabet Group since 1990 and Vice President and General Manager of
the Alphabet Group since 2000.

Andrew M. Oakes, Vice President and General Manager of the Actuator and Sensor Products
Group. Mr. Oakes served as General Manager of the Actuator Products Division from 1996 to 1997,
and Vice President and General Manager of the Actuator Products Division from 1998 to 2001 when he
became Vice President and General Manager of the Actuator and Sensor Products Group.

Mark J. Tervalon, Vice President and General Manager of the Stoneridge Electronics Group.
Mr. Tervalon served as Vice President and General Manager of Power — One, Inc. from 1998 to 2002
when he joined the Company as Vice President and General Manager of the Electronic Products Division.
He became Vice President and General Manager of the Stoneridge Electronics Group in 2003.

Vincent F. Suttmeier, Vice President and General Manager of the Switch and Sensor Products
Group. Mr. Suttmeier served as Director of Operations, Compressor Controls at Texas Instruments, Inc.
from 1996 to 1999 when he joined the Company as Vice President of the Switch Products Division in
January 2000. He became Vice President and General Manager of the Switch Products Division in June
2000 and Vice President and General Manager of the Switch and Sensor Products Group in June 2004.

Avery S. Cohen, Secretary and Director. Mr. Cohen has served as Secretary and a Director of the
Company since 1988. Mr. Cohen is a partner in Baker & Hostetler LLP, a law firm which has served as
general outside counsel for the Company since 1993 and is expected to continue to do so in the future.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

The Company currently owns or leases 19 manufacturing facilities, which together contain approxi-
mately 1.7 million square feet of manufacturing space. Of these manufacturing facilities, nine are owned
or leased by the Company’s Vehicle Management & Power Distribution reportable segment and ten are
owned or leased by the Company’s Control Devices reportable segment. The following table provides
information regarding the Company’s facilities:

Owned/ Square
Location Use Leased Status Footage

Boston, Massachusetts Manufacturing/Division Office Owned 133,000
Canton, Massachusetts Manufacturing/Division Office Owned 130,000
El Paso, Texas Manufacturing/Warehouse Leased 93,000
Lexington, Ohio Manufacturing/Division Office Owned 146,992
Lexington, Ohio Warehouse Leased 15,000
Lexington, Ohio Manufacturing Owned 10,120
Novi, Michigan Sales/Engineering Office Leased 9,400
Orwell, Ohio Manufacturing Owned 62,000
Portland, Indiana Manufacturing Owned 182,000
Sarasota, Florida Manufacturing/Division Office Owned 125,000
Sarasota, Florida Warehouse Owned 9,000
Warren, Ohio Corporate Office Owned 7,500
Warren, Ohio Division Office Leased 24,570
Cheltenham, England Manufacturing Leased 51,336
Cheltenham, England Manufacturing Leased 39,983
Dundee, Scotland Manufacturing/Division Office Leased 30,000
Madrid, Spain Sales Office/Warehouse Leased 1,560
Mitcheldean, England Manufacturing/Division Office Leased 74,790
Northampton, England Manufacturing Owned 40,667
Orebro, Sweden Manufacturing Leased 77,472
Bayonne, France Sales Office/Warehouse Leased 4,573
Stockholm, Sweden Engineering/Division Office Leased 16,100
Stuttgart, Germany Sales/Engineering Office Leased 1,000
Tallinn, Estonia Manufacturing Leased 50,561
Chihuahua, Mexico Manufacturing Owned 135,447
Chihuahua, Mexico Manufacturing Leased 49,250
Juarez, Mexico Manufacturing/Division Office Owned 178,000
Monclova, Mexico Manufacturing Leased 68,312
Shanghai, China Sales/Purchasing Office Leased 100

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Company is involved in certain legal actions and claims arising in the ordinary course of
business. The Company, however, does not believe that any of the litigation in which it is currently
engaged, either individually or in the aggregate, will have a material adverse effect on its business,
consolidated financial position or results of operations. The Company is subject to the risk of exposure to
product liability claims in the event that the failure of any of its products causes personal injury or death
to users of the Company’s products and there can be no assurance that the Company will not
experience any material product liability losses in the future. In addition, if any of the Company’s
products prove to be defective, the Company may be required to participate in a government-imposed or
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OEM-instituted recall involving such products. The Company maintains insurance against such liability
claims.

On January 15, 2004, a judgment was entered against the Company in the District Court (365th Judi-
cial District) in Maverick County, Texas. The plaintiffs alleged in their complaint that a Company fuel valve
installed as a replacement part on a truck caused a fire after an accident resulting in a death. The
plaintiffs are the parents of the decedent. The judgment entered against the Company was approximately
$36.5 million. The Company denies its fuel valve contributed to the fire. The trial court denied a motion
for a new trial and other relief. An appeal of this judgment has been filed. The Company believes that
there are valid grounds to reverse the judgment on appeal. If successful, the appeal may alter or
eliminate the amount of the existing judgment. While legal proceedings are subject to inherent uncer-
tainty, the Company believes that it is reasonably possible that this award will be substantially altered or
eliminated by the appellate court. Consequently, in the opinion of management and the Company’s legal
counsel, it is not possible to estimate the outcome of such uncertainty at this time. The Company will
record a provision for any liability in this case, if and at the time that management and counsel conclude
a loss is probable. Based upon advice received from the Company’s legal counsel, the Company
believes a loss resulting from this matter is not probable as of December 31, 2004. Even at full
judgment, however, the Company’s exposure is significantly less than the $36.5 million mentioned
above, as it has been mitigated with appropriate levels of insurance.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of 2004.

PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED SHAREHOLDER MATTERS

On February 18, 2005, the Company had 22,784,662 Common Shares without par value, issued
and outstanding, which were owned by approximately 275 shareholders of record, including Common
Shares held in ‘‘streetname’’ by nominees who are record holders and approximately 1,400 beneficial
owners.

The Company has not historically paid or declared dividends, which are restricted under both the
senior notes and the credit agreement, on its Common Shares. The Company may only pay cash
dividends in the future if immediately prior to and immediately after the payment is made no event of
default has occurred, the Company remains in compliance with certain leverage ratio requirements, and
the amount paid does not exceed 5% of the Company’s excess cash flow for the preceding fiscal year.
The Company currently intends to retain earnings for acquisitions, working capital, capital expenditures,
general corporate purposes and reduction in outstanding indebtedness. Accordingly, the Company does
not expect to pay cash dividends in the foreseeable future.
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The Company’s Common Shares are traded on the New York Stock Exchange (‘‘NYSE’’) under the
symbol SRI. High and low sales prices (as reported on the NYSE composite tape) for the Company’s
Common Shares for each quarter during 2004 and 2003 are as follows:

Quarter Ended High Low

2004 March 31 ************************************************ $17.97 $13.20
June 30************************************************** $17.44 $14.02
September 30 ******************************************** $17.19 $13.20
December 31********************************************* $16.75 $12.73

2003 March 31 ************************************************ $15.55 $ 8.84
June 30************************************************** $14.07 $ 9.50
September 30 ******************************************** $17.29 $13.45
December 31********************************************* $15.73 $12.28

In October 1997, the Company adopted a Long-Term Incentive Plan for its employees and in May
2002, the Company adopted a Director Share Option Plan for its directors. Both plans were approved by
the Company’s shareholders. Equity compensation plan information, as of December 31, 2004, is as
follows:

Number of securities to Number of securities
be issued upon the remaining available for

exercise of Weighted-average future issuance under
outstanding share exercise price of equity compensation

options outstanding share options plans(1)

Equity compensation
plans approved by
shareholders ********* 828,850 $11.24 1,549,400

Equity compensation
plans not approved by
shareholders ********* — $ — —

(1) Excludes securities reflected in the first column, ‘‘Number of securities to be issued upon the
exercise of outstanding share options.’’ Also excludes 100,350 restricted shares issued, 100,100
of which were outstanding, to key employees as of December 31, 2004. These restricted shares
were issued pursuant to the Company’s Long-Term Incentive Plan.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table sets forth selected historical financial data for the Company and should be read
in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and notes related thereto and other financial
information included elsewhere herein. The selected historical data was derived from the Company’s
consolidated financial statements.

For the Years Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

(In thousands, except per share data)

Statement of Operations Data:
Net sales:

Control Devices*************** $ 356,688 $ 354,925 $398,909 $370,817 $437,384
Vehicle Management & Power

Distribution **************** 349,375 273,325 257,742 225,790 239,468
Eliminations ****************** (24,268) (21,585) (20,144) (12,139) (9,660)

Consolidated ***************** $ 681,795 $ 606,665 $636,507 $584,468 $667,192

Gross profit(A) ****************** $ 174,197 $ 156,030 $165,319 $135,082 $171,112
Operating (loss) income(B) ******* $(125,570) $ 58,370 $ 74,320 $ 35,725 $ 76,506

(Loss) income before income
taxes and cumulative effect of
accounting change(B)(E)
Control Devices*************** $(148,366) $ 48,067 $ 70,170 $ 41,496 $ 83,869
Vehicle Management & Power

Distribution **************** 27,968 13,738 8,364 (7,349) (6,505)
Corporate Interest************* (24,281) (27,141) (33,101) (29,500) (27,519)
Loss on Extinguishment of Debt — — (5,771) — —
Other Corporate Activities ****** (4,477) (3,644) (7,344) (751) (3,051)

Consolidated ***************** $(149,156) $ 31,020 $ 32,318 $ 3,896 $ 46,794

(Loss) income before cumulative
effect of accounting
change(C)(E) ***************** $ (92,503) $ 21,379 $ 21,056 $ 2,946 $ 32,709

Net (loss) income(C)(D)(E)******** $ (92,503) $ 21,379 $ (48,778) $ 2,946 $ 32,709

Basic (loss) income before
cumulative effect of accounting
change per share ************* $ (4.09) $ 0.95 $ 0.94 $ 0.13 $ 1.46

Diluted (loss) income before
cumulative effect of accounting
change per share ************* $ (4.09) $ 0.94 $ 0.93 $ 0.13 $ 1.46

Basic net (loss) income per share $ (4.09) $ 0.95 $ (2.18) $ 0.13 $ 1.46

Diluted net (loss) income per
share************************ $ (4.09) $ 0.94 $ (2.16) $ 0.13 $ 1.46

Other Data:
Product development expenses *** $ 36,145 $ 28,714 $ 25,332 $ 26,996 $ 26,750
Capital expenditures ************ 23,917 26,382 14,656 23,968 28,720
Depreciation and amortization(F)** 25,416 22,188 21,900 28,844 28,026
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For the Years Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

(In thousands, except per share data)

Balance Sheet Data:
Working capital ***************** $ 123,317 $ 72,832 $ 87,112 $ 47,889 $ 81,309
Total assets******************** 474,578 573,001 564,461 664,267 690,329
Long-term debt, less current

portion ********************** 200,052 200,245 248,918 249,720 296,079
Shareholders’ equity ************ 155,605 243,406 215,902 259,607 262,186

(A) Gross profit represents net sales less cost of goods sold.

(B) The Company’s 2004 operating loss and loss before income taxes and cumulative effect of account-
ing change, includes a non-cash goodwill impairment charge of $183,450, which was recorded in
the fourth quarter of 2004.

(C) The Company’s 2004 net loss and related basic and diluted loss per share amounts include a non-
cash goodwill impairment charge of $183,450 and a corresponding tax benefit of $63,699, which
was recorded in the fourth quarter of 2004.

(D) In accordance with the transition provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standard
(SFAS) 142, ‘‘Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,’’ the Company determined during 2002 that the
carrying value of the Company’s goodwill exceeded its fair value. Effective January 1, 2002, the
Company recorded a non-cash, after-tax impairment charge of $69,834 as a cumulative effect of
accounting change.

(E) During the second quarter of 2002, the Company recognized a non-cash, pre-tax loss on extinguish-
ment of debt of $5,771, as the result of an early extinguishment of debt.

(F) These amounts represent depreciation and amortization on fixed and certain intangible assets.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS
OF OPERATIONS

Overview

The Company is a leading, technology driven, independent designer and manufacturer of highly
engineered electrical and electronic components, modules and systems for the automotive, medium- and
heavy-duty truck, agricultural and off-highway vehicle markets.

Intense competition, higher commodity costs and global excess capacity by the Company’s major
customers were the most significant challenges experienced by the Company in 2004, and the Company
expects that such challenges will continue in 2005. The Company continuously works to address these
challenges by implementing a broad range of initiatives aimed to improve operating performance. These
initiatives include further rationalization of manufacturing capacity, continued implementation of lean
enterprise and Six Sigma programs, the shifting of production to low-cost locations and centralization of
the purchasing function. The Company’s management team is focused on improving its operational
efficiency while also adapting to the needs of customers and the market.

The Company’s global expansion effort includes the joint venture with Minda Instruments LTD
(Minda), a company based in India that manufactures electronic instrumentation equipment for passen-
ger cars, commercial vehicles and agricultural equipment. This strategic alliance is an important compo-
nent of the Company’s growth strategy, which includes establishing a presence in the emerging Asian
markets. The Company also previously announced that it opened an international purchasing office in
Shanghai, China, to improve its access to low-cost suppliers and establish a base for future business
development in Asia. To continue offering its customers the highest quality, lowest cost products
delivered globally, the Company also intends to expand existing capacity in global low cost locations.

In connection with the change in executive leadership during 2004, the Company reevaluated its
strategic growth initiative to emphasize the design and development of highly engineered products and
deemphasize fully integrated systems, although such systems remain an important component of the
Company’s growth strategy. This strategic redirection, along with sales and organizational realignment,
was completed in the fourth quarter of 2004. Management believes that the Company’s value is driven
by its technology and broad portfolio of highly engineered products and components that enhance the
performance of its customers’ systems. As a result of this shift in philosophy, among other things, the
Company recorded a pre-tax, non-cash goodwill impairment charge of $183.5 million in connection with
the Company’s 1998 acquisition of Hi-Stat Manufacturing Company, Inc. This impairment charge was
effective as of the fourth quarter of 2004 and came about during the Company’s annual impairment
analysis, which is required by Statement of Financial Standard (SFAS) 142, ‘‘Goodwill and Other Intangi-
ble Assets.’’ See Note 2 of the Company’s consolidated financial statements for more information
regarding this impairment charge.

The Company recognized a net loss for the year ended December 31, 2004 of $92.5 million, or
$4.09 per diluted share. This net loss includes the goodwill impairment charge described above.
Excluding the goodwill impairment charge, net income would have been $27.2 million, or $1.19 per
diluted share, for the year ended December 31, 2004, compared with $21.4 million, or $0.94 per diluted
share, for 2003. The Company has provided this information regarding net income excluding the effects
of the goodwill impairment charge recorded during the fourth quarter of 2004 because the Company
believes that this non-GAAP financial measure is useful to both management and investors in their
analysis of the Company’s financial performance when comparing 2004 results to prior periods.

Significant factors inherent to the automotive industry that could affect the Company’s results in
2005 include its ability to recover commodity price increases from its customers, to implement planned
productivity and cost reduction initiatives, to successfully integrate potential acquisitions, to success-
fully execute its planned restructuring program and to properly manage the impact of currency fluctua-
tions on sales and operating income. The Company’s results in 2005 also depend on conditions in the
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automotive and commercial vehicle industries, which are generally dependent on U.S. and global
economies.

Results of Operations

The Company is organized based primarily on markets served and products produced. Under this
organization structure, the Company’s operating segments have been aggregated into two reportable
segments: Vehicle Management & Power Distribution and Control Devices. The Vehicle Management &
Power Distribution reportable segment includes results of operations from the Company’s operations
that primarily design and manufacture vehicle electrical power and distribution systems and electronic
instrumentation products. The Control Devices reportable segment includes results of operations from
the Company’s operations that primarily design and manufacture electronic and electrical switch prod-
ucts, actuator products, sensor products and information display products.

Year Ended December 31, 2004 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2003

Net Sales. Net sales for each of the Company’s reportable segments, excluding intersegment
sales, for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 are summarized in the following table:

For the Year Ended
December 31, $ Increase/ % Increase/

2004 2003 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Control Devices ********************** $353,892 $352,590 $ 1,302 0.4%
Vehicle Management & Power

Distribution ************************ 327,903 254,075 73,828 29.1

Total Net Sales*********************** $681,795 $606,665 $75,130 12.4%

The increase in net sales for both of the Company’s reportable segments during 2004 was primarily
attributable to an increase in commercial vehicle production partially offset by lower North American
light vehicle production and price reductions. Net sales were also favorably impacted by foreign exchange
rate fluctuations relative to the U.S. dollar, which increased sales by $13.5 million.

Net sales by geographic location for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 are summarized
in the following table:

For the Year Ended
December 31, $ Increase/ % Increase/

2004 2003 (Decrease) (Decrease)

North America************************ $549,241 $492,565 $56,676 11.5%
Europe and Other********************* 132,554 114,100 18,454 16.2

Total Net Sales*********************** $681,795 $606,665 $75,130 12.4%

North American sales accounted for 80.6% of total net sales in 2004 compared with 81.2% in 2003.
The increase in North American sales was primarily attributable to increased sales to the commercial
vehicle market, partially offset by a decrease in sales to the light vehicle market, and price reductions.
Sales outside North America accounted for 19.4% of total sales in 2004 compared with 18.8% in
2003. The increase in net sales outside North America was primarily attributable to increased commer-
cial vehicle production and also to favorable currency exchange rates, partially offset by a decrease in
sales to the light vehicle market and price reductions.

Cost of Goods Sold. Cost of goods sold for the year ended December 31, 2004 increased by
$57.0 million, or 12.6%, to $507.6 million from $450.6 million in 2003. As a percentage of sales, cost
of goods sold remained relatively flat at 74.4% in 2004 compared to 74.3% in 2003. Cost of goods sold
includes primarily material, labor and manufacturing overhead costs. The Company was able to maintain
its gross margin percentage despite the difficult operating environment due to management’s continued
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focus on the Company’s lean production system utilizing Six Sigma principles. Among the significant
challenges that threaten the Company’s gross margin going forward are continued pressure to reduce
prices by its customers and higher raw material costs.

The Company maintains a strong focus on ensuring its cost competitiveness in the marketplace. In
light of this focus, the Company established a new manufacturing facility in Mexico in 2003 and began
consolidating production facilities in the United Kingdom in 2004. The Company will continue to
evaluate its cost structure on a product-by-product basis to determine the most competitive manufactur-
ing locations for its products. In addition, the Company continues to pursue cost reduction initiatives,
including the utilization of the Company’s lean production systems, which focus on Six Sigma princi-
ples. These initiatives are partially offset by a reduction in product selling prices.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. Selling, general and administrative (SG&A) ex-
penses increased by $18.7 million to $116.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2004 from
$97.7 million in 2003. Included in SG&A expenses for the year ended December 31, 2004 and 2003
were product development expenses of $36.1 million and $28.7 million, respectively. The increase in
SG&A expenses reflects increased investment in the Company’s product development activities, which
are focused on occupant safety, chassis, driveline and instrument cluster products, and increased
sales and marketing efforts. Sarbanes-Oxley implementation, especially compliance with Section 404 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, which relates to internal controls, and legal-related costs, also
negatively affected SG&A during 2004. As a percentage of sales, SG&A expenses increased to 17.1% in
2004 from 16.1% in 2003.

(Loss) Income Before Income Taxes. (Loss) income before income taxes, which is the primary
profitability measure used by the Company’s chief operating decision maker, is summarized in the
following table by reportable segment for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003.

For the Year Ended
December 31, $ Increase/

2004 2003 (Decrease)

Control Devices ********************************** $(148,366) $48,067 $(196,433)
Vehicle Management & Power Distribution*********** 27,968 13,738 14,230
Corporate Interest******************************** (24,281) (27,141) 2,860
Other Corporate Activities ************************* (4,477) (3,644) (833)

(Loss) Income Before Income Taxes **************** $(149,156) $31,020 $(180,176)

The loss before income taxes recognized at the Company’s Control Devices reportable segment was
due to the goodwill impairment charge of $183.5 million recorded in the fourth quarter of 2004 after the
Company performed its annual goodwill impairment analysis. The main factors that contributed to the
goodwill impairment charge included an organizational realignment that was completed during the fourth
quarter of 2004 as the result of the Company’s change in executive leadership and a realization that the
anticipated growth of one of the business units included in the Control Devices reportable segment no
longer justified the carrying value of its goodwill. Excluding the effect of the goodwill impairment charge,
income before income taxes for the year ended December 31, 2004 decreased by $13.0 million at the
Control Devices reportable segment to $35.1 million from $48.1 million, primarily as the result of price
reductions, higher commodity costs, and increased product development activities.

Income before income taxes for the year ended December 31, 2004 increased by $14.2 million at
the Vehicle Management & Power Distribution reportable segment, primarily as the result of increased
commercial vehicle production, offset by higher commodity costs and price reductions. This increase
also includes a benefit due to favorable currency exchange rates.

Income before income taxes for the year ended December 31, 2004 for North America decreased by
$156.3 million to a loss of $135.0 million from income of $21.3 million for the corresponding period in
2003. Income before income taxes for the year ended December 31, 2004 outside North America
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decreased by $23.8 million to a loss of $14.1 million from income of $9.7 million for the corresponding
period in 2003. The decrease in the Company’s worldwide profitability was primarily due to the non-cash,
goodwill impairment charge recognized in 2004. The loss before income taxes reported by the Com-
pany was also due to the decrease in passenger car and light truck production as well as price
reductions, higher commodity costs, and increased product development activities, offset by increased
commercial vehicle production and favorable currency exchange rates.

(Benefit) Provision for Income Taxes. The Company recognized a (benefit) provision for income
taxes of $(56.7) million, or 38.0% of the pre-tax loss, and $9.6 million, or 31.1% of pre-tax income, for
federal, state and foreign income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
The effective tax rate for 2004 decreased primarily due to the tax benefit recognized on the loss. The
rate decrease was marginally impacted by a reduction in state taxes, which was offset by a reduction in
credits and the impact of the goodwill impairment charge.

Year Ended December 31, 2003 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2002

Net Sales. Net sales for each of our reportable segments, excluding intersegment sales, for the
years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 are summarized in the following table:

For the Year Ended
December 31, $ Increase/ % Increase/

2003 2002 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Control Devices ********************** $352,590 $396,874 $(44,284) (11.2)%
Vehicle Management & Power

Distribution ************************ 254,075 239,633 14,442 6.0

Total Net Sales*********************** $606,665 $636,507 $(29,842) (4.7)%

The decrease in net sales at the Company’s Control Devices reportable segment during 2003 was
primarily attributable to reduced sales from an exited product line and lower North American light vehicle
production. The increase in net sales at the Company’s Vehicle Management & Power Distribution
reportable segment was predominately due to favorable currency exchange rates and increased content
within the commercial vehicle market.

Net sales by geographic location for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 are summarized
in the following table:

For the Year Ended
December 31, $ Increase/ % Increase/

2003 2002 (Decrease) (Decrease)

North America************************ $492,565 $534,807 $(42,242) (7.9)%
Europe and Other********************* 114,100 101,700 12,400 12.2

Total Net Sales*********************** $606,665 $636,507 $(29,842) (4.7)%

North American sales accounted for 81.2% of total sales in 2003 compared with 84.0% in 2002.
The decrease in North American sales was primarily due to the exited product line and lower North
American light vehicle production. Sales outside North America accounted for 18.8% of total sales in
2003 compared with 16.0% in 2002. Favorable foreign exchange accounted for most of the increase in
sales outside North America in 2003.

Cost of Goods Sold. Cost of goods sold for the year ended December 31, 2003 decreased by
$20.6 million, or 4.4%, to $450.6 million from $471.2 million in 2002. As a percentage of sales, cost of
goods sold increased slightly to 74.3% in 2003 from 74.0% in 2002. The increase in cost of goods sold
as a percentage of sales was primarily the result of reduced volumes, partially offset by ongoing cost
reduction initiatives.
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The Company maintains a strong focus on ensuring its cost competitiveness in the marketplace. In
light of this focus, the Company established a new manufacturing facility in Mexico. The Company will
continue to evaluate its cost structure on a product-by-product basis to determine the most competitive
manufacturing locations for its products. In addition, the Company continues to pursue cost reduction
initiatives, including the utilization of the Company’s lean production systems, which focus on Six Sigma
principles. These initiatives are partially offset by a reduction in product selling prices.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. Selling, general and administrative (SG&A) ex-
penses, including product development, increased by $6.7 million to $97.7 million for the year ended
December 31, 2003 from $91.0 million in 2002. Included in SG&A expenses for the year ended
December 31, 2003 and 2002 were product development expenses of $28.7 million and $25.3 million,
respectively. As a percentage of sales, SG&A expenses increased to 16.1% in 2003 from 14.3% in
2002.

This increase reflects increased investment in the Company’s design and development activities and
increased sales and marketing efforts for solid state sensing, seat track position sensing, remote
electronic displays and various other products. The increase is also attributable to the Company’s
decision to adopt the fair value method of accounting for stock options. Under SFAS 123, ‘‘Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation,’’ compensation expense is measured at the date the option is granted
using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model, and is then recognized ratably over the option’s vesting
period on a straight-line basis. As a result of the adoption of the fair value method, the Company
recognized $1.3 million of pre-tax, non-cash compensation expense for the year ended December 31,
2003. This adoption was the result of the Company’s desire to increase financial reporting transparency
to its shareholders as well as to pursue best practices for corporate governance.

Income Before Income Taxes and Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change. Income before income
taxes and cumulative effect of accounting change, which is the primary profitability measure used by the
Company’s chief operating decision maker, is summarized in the following table by reportable segment
for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002.

For the Year Ended
December 31, $ Increase/

2003 2002 (Decrease)

Control Devices *********************************** $ 48,067 $ 70,170 $(22,103)
Vehicle Management & Power Distribution************ 13,738 8,364 5,374
Corporate Interest********************************* (27,141) (33,101) 5,960
Loss on Extinguishment of Debt ******************** — (5,771) 5,771
Other Corporate Activities ************************** (3,644) (7,344) 3,700

(Loss) Income Before Income Taxes ***************** $ 31,020 $ 32,318 $ (1,298)

The decrease in income before income taxes recognized at the Company’s Control Devices reporta-
ble segment was primarily due to reduced sales from an exited product line, lower North American light
vehicle production, price reductions, increased design and development and selling and marketing
expenses.

The increase in income before income taxes at the Company’s Vehicle Management & Power
Distribution reportable segment was primarily due to the increase in commercial vehicle production.

Income before income taxes for the year ended December 31, 2003 for North America decreased by
$1.0 million to $21.3 million from $22.3 million for the corresponding period in 2002. This decrease
was primarily due to an exited product line and lower North American light vehicle production. Income
before income taxes for the year ended December 31, 2003 outside North America decreased $0.3 mil-
lion to $9.7 million from $10.0 million for the corresponding period in 2003.
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Provision for Income Taxes. The Company recognized provisions for income taxes of $9.6 million,
or 31.1% of pre-tax income, and $11.3 million, or 34.8% of pre-tax income, for federal, state and foreign
income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The decrease in the
effective tax rate was primarily due to tax refunds related to the completion of several strategic tax
initiatives and to the higher proportion of non-U.S. pre-tax income, which is taxed at a lower rate than
U.S. pre-tax income. The effective tax rate is expected to increase in future years pending certain
proposed tax legislation.

Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change, net of tax. In accordance with the transition provisions of
SFAS 142, the Company completed the two-step transitional goodwill impairment analysis in 2002. As a
result, the Company recorded as a cumulative effect of accounting change, a non-cash, after-tax charge
of $69.8 million, to write off a portion of the carrying value of goodwill. The after-tax charge by reportable
segment was $31.8 million for Vehicle Management & Power Distribution and $38.0 million for Control
Devices. The Company performed an annual impairment test on goodwill during 2003 and no additional
impairment was required to be recognized.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Net cash provided by operating activities was $48.3 million and $72.4 million for the years ended
December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The decrease in net cash from operating activities of
$24.1 million was primarily due to an increase in accounts receivable and planned increases in inventory
to satisfy customer requirements as the Company began consolidating manufacturing facilities in the
United Kingdom and started up an operation in Mexico.

Net cash used by investing activities was $19.9 million and $25.2 million for the years ended
December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. This decrease is primarily due to the collection of a loan
receivable from a joint venture in 2004.

Net cash used by financing activities was $1.0 million and $51.7 million for the years ended
December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Cash used by financing activities in 2003 was primarily
related to the reduction of the Company’s debt obligations. See Note 4 to the Company’s consolidated
financial statements for information on the Company’s senior notes and credit agreement, including
availability on the Company’s revolving facility.

The Company has entered into foreign currency forward purchase contracts with a notional value of
58.4 million of Swedish krona to reduce exposure related to the Company’s krona denominated receiv-
ables and 2.0 million of British pounds to reduce exposure related to the Company’s pound denomi-
nated payables. The estimated fair value of these forward contracts at December 31, 2004, per quoted
market sources, was $(1.1) million. These forward contracts are marked to market, with gains and
losses recognized in the consolidated statement of operations. The Company’s foreign currency forward
purchase contracts substantially offset losses and gains on the underlying foreign denominated receiv-
ables and payables. The Company does not use derivatives for speculative or profit-motivated purposes.

As discussed in Note 10 to the Company’s condensed consolidated financial statements, a judg-
ment was entered against the Company on January 15, 2004 whereby the plaintiffs alleged in their
complaint that a Stoneridge fuel valve installed as a replacement part on a truck caused a fire after an
accident resulting in a death. The company denies its fuel valve contributed to the fire. The judgment
entered against the Company was approximately $36.5 million. An appeal of this judgment has been
filed. While legal proceedings are subject to inherent uncertainty, the Company believes that it is
reasonably possible that this award will be substantially altered or eliminated by the appellate court.
Even at full judgment, however, the Company’s exposure is significantly less than the $36.5 million
mentioned above, as it has been mitigated with appropriate levels of insurance.

19



The following table summarizes the Company’s future cash outflows resulting from financial con-
tracts and commitments, as of December 31, 2004. The Company’s $200.0 million senior notes are
redeemable in May 2007 at 105.75.

Less than After
Contractual Obligations: Total 1 Year 2–3 Years 4–5 Years 5 Years

Long-term debt *************** $200,161 $ 109 $ 52 $ — $200,000
Operating leases ************** 28,114 5,480 9,492 5,627 7,515
Employee benefit plans ******** 7,838 518 1,207 1,262 4,851

Total contractual obligations ** $236,113 $6,107 $10,751 $6,889 $212,366

Future capital expenditures are expected to be consistent with recent levels and future organic
growth is expected to be funded through cash flows from operations. Management will continue to focus
on reducing its weighted average cost of capital and believes that cash flows from operations and the
availability of funds from the Company’s credit facilities and senior notes will provide sufficient liquidity
to meet the Company’s future growth and operating needs. As outlined in Note 4 to the Company’s
condensed consolidated financial statements, the Company has a revolving credit facility of which
$96.2 million was available at December 31, 2004. The Company also has $52.3 million in available
cash, and believes it will have access to the debt and equity markets should the need arise.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting princi-
ples requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial
statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.

On an ongoing basis, the Company evaluates estimates and assumptions used in its financial
statements. The Company bases its estimates on historical experience and on various other factors that
the Company believes to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for
making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

The Company believes the following are its ‘‘critical accounting policies’’ — those most important to
the financial presentation and those that require the most difficult, subjective or complex judgments.

Revenue Recognition and Sales Commitments — The Company recognizes revenues from the sale
of products, net of actual and estimated returns, at the point of passage of title, which is generally at the
time of shipment. The Company often enters into agreements with its customers at the beginning of a
given vehicle’s expected production life. Once such agreements are entered into, it is the Company’s
obligation to fulfill the customers’ purchasing requirements for the entire production life of the vehicle.
These agreements are subject to renegotiation, which may affect product pricing.

Warranty Reserves — The Company’s warranty reserve is established based on the Company’s best
estimate of the amounts necessary to settle future and existing claims on products sold as of the
balance sheet date. This estimate is based on historical trends of units sold and payment amounts,
combined with the Company’s current understanding of the status of existing claims. Estimating the
warranty reserve requires the Company to forecast the resolution of existing claims as well as expected
future claims on products previously sold. While the Company believes that its warranty reserve is
adequate and that the judgment applied is appropriate, such amounts estimated to be due and payable
could differ materially from what will actually transpire in the future. The Company’s customers are
increasingly seeking to hold suppliers responsible for product warranties, which could negatively affect
the Company’s exposure to these costs.

Bad Debts — The Company evaluates the collectibility of accounts receivable based on a combina-
tion of factors. In circumstances where the Company is aware of a specific customer’s inability to meet
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its financial obligations, a specific allowance for doubtful accounts is recorded against amounts due to
reduce the net recognized receivable to the amount the Company reasonably believes will be collected.
Additionally, the Company reviews historical trends for collectibility in determining an estimate for its
allowance for doubtful accounts. If economic circumstances change substantially, estimates of the
recoverability of amounts due to the Company could be reduced by a material amount. The Company
does not have collateral requirements with its customers.

Inventory — Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined by the last-in,
first-out (LIFO) method for U.S. inventories and by the first-in, first-out (FIFO) or average cost method for
non-U.S. inventories. Where appropriate, standard cost systems are utilized for purposes of determining
cost and the standards are adjusted as necessary to ensure they approximate actual costs. Estimates of
the lower of cost or market value of inventory are determined based upon current economic conditions,
historical sales quantities and patterns and, in some cases, the specific risk of loss on specifically
identified inventories.

Goodwill — In connection with the adoption of SFAS 142, ‘‘Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,’’
the Company discontinued its amortization of goodwill on January 1, 2002. In lieu of amortization, this
standard requires that goodwill be tested for impairment as of the date of adoption, at least annually
thereafter and whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be
recoverable. See Note 2 to the Company’s consolidated financial statements for more information on
the Company’s application of this accounting standard, including the valuation techniques used to
determine the fair value of goodwill.

Share-Based Compensation — Effective January 1, 2003, the Company adopted the fair value
recognition provision of SFAS 123, ‘‘Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation’’ and adopted the disclo-
sure requirements of SFAS 148, ‘‘Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and Disclo-
sure — an amendment of SFAS 123.’’ In accordance with SFAS 148, the Company has adopted the fair
value recognition provisions on a prospective basis for awards granted, modified and settled subse-
quent to January 1, 2003. Option awards cliff-vest at the end of the vesting period, and compensation
expense is recognized ratably over the vesting period on a straight-line basis. Restricted share awards
vest over a period of one to three years and compensation expense is also recognized on a straight-line
basis. See Note 2 to the Company’s consolidated financial statements for assumptions used to deter-
mine fair value.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

See Note 2 to the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Inflation and International Presence

Management believes that the Company’s operations have not historically been adversely affected
by inflation; however, given the current economic climate and recent increases in certain commodity
prices, management believes that a continuation of such price increases could significantly impact the
Company’s profitability. By operating internationally, the Company is affected by the economic condi-
tions of certain countries. Based on the current economic conditions in these countries, management
believes the Company is not significantly exposed to adverse economic conditions.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Interest Rate Risk

From time to time, the Company is exposed to certain market risks, primarily resulting from the
effects of changes in interest rates. At December 31, 2004, however, all of the Company’s debt was
fixed rate debt.
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Commodity Price Risk

The Company’s risk related to commodity prices has historically not been material; however, given
the current economic climate and the recent increases in certain commodity costs, the Company
currently is experiencing an increased risk particularly with respect to the purchase of copper, steel and
resins. The Company is managing this risk through a combination of fixed-price agreements, staggered
short-term contract maturities and commercial negotiations with its suppliers. The Company may also
consider pursuing alternative commodities or alternative suppliers to mitigate this risk over a period of
time. At this time, the Company does not intend to use financial instruments to mitigate this risk. The
recent increases in certain commodity costs have negatively impacted the Company’s operating
results, and a continuation of such price increases could significantly impact its profitability.

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk

The Company’s risks related to foreign currency exchange rates have historically not been material;
however, given the current economic climate, the Company is monitoring this risk. The Company does
not expect the effects of this risk to be material in the future based on the current operating and
economic conditions in the countries in which it operates. Therefore, a 10.0% change in the value of the
U.S. dollar would not significantly affect the Company’s results of operations, financial position or cash
flows.

There have been no material changes to the Company’s exposures to market risk, except for
commodity price risk, since December 31, 2003, as reported in the 2003 Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Stoneridge, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Stoneridge, Inc. (an Ohio
Corporation) and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 and the related consolidated state-
ments of operations, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2004. Our audit also included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index
at Item 15. These financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s manage-
ment. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule based on
our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of Stoneridge, Inc. and Subsidiaries at December 31, 2004
and 2003 and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2004, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles. Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to
the basic financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects the information
set forth therein.

As explained in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, effective January 1, 2003, the
Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (Statement) No. 123, ‘‘Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation,’’ under the prospective transition method in Statement No. 148, ‘‘Account-
ing for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and Disclosure; an Amendment to Statement
No. 123.’’ Also explained in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, effective January 1, 2002,
the Company adopted Statement No. 142, ‘‘Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.’’

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the effectiveness of Stoneridge, Inc. and Subsidiaries’ internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on criteria established in Internal Control —
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commis-
sion and our report dated March 8, 2005 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Cleveland, Ohio
March 8, 2005
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STONERIDGE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands)

December 31,
2004 2003

ASSETS
Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents****************************************** $ 52,332 $ 24,142
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts of $3,891 and

$2,904, for 2004 and 2003, respectively *************************** 100,615 89,161
Inventories, net **************************************************** 56,397 48,047
Prepaid expenses and other ***************************************** 12,993 10,420
Deferred income taxes********************************************** 13,282 7,856

Total current assets ********************************************** 235,619 179,626

Property, Plant and Equipment, net************************************* 114,004 116,262
Other Assets:

Goodwill ********************************************************** 65,176 248,626
Investments and other, net****************************************** 24,979 28,487
Deferred income taxes********************************************** 34,800 —

Total Assets ********************************************************* $474,578 $573,001

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current Liabilities:

Current portion of long-term debt ************************************ $ 109 $ 417
Accounts payable ************************************************** 57,709 53,594
Accrued expenses and other **************************************** 54,484 52,783

Total current liabilities ******************************************** 112,302 106,794

Long-Term Liabilities:
Long-term debt, net of current portion ******************************** 200,052 200,245
Deferred income taxes********************************************** — 18,622
Other liabilities **************************************************** 6,619 3,934

Total long-term liabilities ****************************************** 206,671 222,801

Shareholders’ Equity:
Preferred shares, without par value, 5,000 authorized, none issued ****** — —
Common shares, without par value, 60,000 authorized, 22,780 (net of 8

treasury shares) and 22,459 issued and outstanding at December 31,
2004 and 2003, respectively, with no stated value******************* — —

Additional paid-in capital ******************************************** 145,764 143,535
Retained earnings************************************************** 6,255 98,758
Accumulated other comprehensive income **************************** 3,586 1,113

Total shareholders’ equity ***************************************** 155,605 243,406

Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity******************************** $474,578 $573,001

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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STONERIDGE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In thousands, except per share data)

For the Years Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002

Net Sales ********************************************** $ 681,795 $606,665 $636,507
Costs and Expenses:

Cost of goods sold ************************************ 507,598 450,635 471,188
Selling, general and administrative*********************** 116,317 97,660 90,999
Goodwill impairment charge***************************** 183,450 — —

Operating (Loss) Income********************************** (125,570) 58,370 74,320

Interest expense, net ********************************** 24,456 27,651 34,616
Loss on extinguishment of debt ************************* — — 5,771
Other (income) expense, net **************************** (870) (301) 1,615

(Loss) Income Before Income Taxes and Cumulative Effect of
Accounting Change ************************************ (149,156) 31,020 32,318

(Benefit) provision for income taxes********************** (56,653) 9,641 11,262

(Loss) Income Before Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change (92,503) 21,379 21,056

Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax ******** — — (69,834)

Net (Loss) Income *************************************** $ (92,503) $ 21,379 $ (48,778)

Basic Net (Loss) Income per Share:
(Loss) Income before cumulative effect of accounting

change ********************************************* $ (4.09) $ 0.95 $ 0.94
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax ******** — — (3.12)

Basic net (loss) income per share *********************** $ (4.09) $ 0.95 $ (2.18)

Diluted Net (Loss) Income per Share:
(Loss) Income before cumulative effect of accounting

change ********************************************* $ (4.09) $ 0.94 $ 0.93
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax ******** — — (3.09)

Diluted net (loss) income per share********************** $ (4.09) $ 0.94 $ (2.16)

Basic Weighted Average Shares Outstanding **************** 22,622 22,415 22,399

Diluted Weighted Average Shares Outstanding*************** 22,622 22,683 22,627

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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STONERIDGE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

For the Years Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net (loss) income ************************************************** $ (92,503) $ 21,379 $ (48,778)
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to net cash provided by

operating activities —
Depreciation and amortization ************************************* 26,757 25,079 26,413
Deferred income taxes******************************************** (57,563) 8,799 12,408
Loss (gain) on sale of fixed assets ********************************* 186 482 (136)
Equity (earnings) losses of unconsolidated subsidiaries *************** (1,639) (1,276) 1,188
Share-based compensation expense ******************************** 1,389 1,300 —
Goodwill impairment charge *************************************** 183,450 — —
Loss on extinguishment of debt ************************************ — — 5,771
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax ******************* — — 69,834
Changes in operating assets and liabilities —

Accounts receivable, net **************************************** (9,511) (6,698) 14,845
Inventories **************************************************** (6,386) 4,876 5,223
Prepaid expenses and other ************************************* (2,612) 707 9,508
Other assets ************************************************** 505 (556) 1,951
Accounts payable ********************************************** 2,596 8,274 (9,193)
Accrued expenses and other************************************* 3,607 9,988 6,591

Net cash provided by operating activities ************************ 48,276 72,354 95,625

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Capital expenditures************************************************ (23,917) (26,382) (14,656)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets *********************************** 1 1,212 311
Investment in joint venture and other ********************************* (702) (3) 2
Collection of loan receivable from joint venture************************* 4,695 — —

Net cash used by investing activities *************************** (19,923) (25,173) (14,343)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from issuance of senior notes ****************************** — — 200,000
Extinguishment of revolving facility************************************ — — (37,641)
Extinguishment of term debt***************************************** — — (226,139)
Net repayments under revolving credit facilities ************************ — — (14,397)
Proceeds from long-term debt**************************************** — — 100,000
Repayments of long-term debt *************************************** (524) (52,095) (65,030)
Share option activity ************************************************ (380) 444 —
Other financing costs *********************************************** (134) — (10,694)
Interest rate swap termination costs********************************** — — (5,274)

Net cash used by financing activities *************************** (1,038) (51,651) (59,175)

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents ********** 875 1,377 759

Net change in cash and cash equivalents ***************************** 28,190 (3,093) 22,866
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period ********************** 24,142 27,235 4,369

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period *************************** $ 52,332 $ 24,142 $ 27,235

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest*********************************************** $ 23,321 $ 25,675 $ 26,277

Cash paid (received) for income taxes ******************************** $ 4,536 $ (5,322) $ (5,313)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Accumulated
Number of Number of Additional Other Total
Common Treasury Paid-In Retained Comprehensive Shareholders’ Comprehensive
Shares Shares Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Equity (Loss) Income

BALANCE, JANUARY 1, 2002 ***** 22,397 — $141,506 $126,157 $ (8,056) $259,607

Net loss *********************** — — — (48,778) — (48,778) $(48,778)
Exercise of share options******** 2 — 10 — — 10 —
Other comprehensive income:

Minimum pension liability
adjustments *************** — — — — (821) (821) (821)

Unrealized loss on marketable
securities****************** — — — — (202) (202) (202)

Change in fair value of
derivatives ***************** — — — — 1,014 1,014 1,014

Amortization of terminated
derivatives ***************** — — — — 2,677 2,677 2,677

Currency translation
adjustments *************** — — — — 2,395 2,395 2,395

Comprehensive loss ******** $(43,715)

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2002** 22,399 — 141,516 77,379 (2,993) 215,902

Net income ******************** — — — 21,379 — 21,379 $ 21,379
Exercise of share options******** 60 — 719 — — 719 —
Share-based compensation

expense ********************* — — 1,300 — — 1,300 —
Other comprehensive income:

Minimum pension liability
adjustments *************** — — — — (443) (443) (443)

Unrealized gain on marketable
securities****************** — — — — 121 121 121

Amortization of terminated
derivatives ***************** — — — — 620 620 620

Currency translation
adjustments *************** — — — — 3,808 3,808 3,808

Comprehensive income****** $ 25,485

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2003** 22,459 — 143,535 98,758 1,113 243,406

Net loss *********************** — — — (92,503) — (92,503) $(92,503)
Exercise of share options******** 221 — 840 — — 840 —
Issuance of restricted shares **** 100 8 — — — — —
Share-based compensation

expense ********************* — — 1,389 — — 1,389 —
Other comprehensive income:

Minimum pension liability
adjustments *************** — — — — (2,224) (2,224) (2,224)

Unrealized gain on marketable
securities****************** — — — — 12 12 12

Currency translation
adjustments *************** — — — — 4,685 4,685 4,685

Comprehensive loss ******** $(90,030)

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2004** 22,780 8 $145,764 $ 6,255 $ 3,586 $155,605

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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1. Organization and Nature of Business

Stoneridge, Inc. and its subsidiaries are independent designers and manufacturers of highly engi-
neered electrical and electronic components, modules and systems for the automotive, medium- and
heavy-duty truck, agricultural and off-highway vehicle markets.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Stoneridge and its
wholly-owned and majority-owned subsidiaries (collectively, the ‘‘Company’’). Intercompany transactions
and balances have been eliminated in consolidation.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less to
be cash equivalents. Cash equivalents are stated at cost, which approximates fair value, due to the
highly liquid nature and short-term duration of the underlying securities.

Accounts Receivable Concentrations

Revenues are principally generated from the automotive, medium- and heavy-duty truck, agricultural
and off-highway vehicle markets. Due to the nature of these industries, a significant portion of sales and
related accounts receivable are concentrated in a relatively small number of customers. In 2004, the
Company’s top four customers individually accounted for approximately 21%, 11%, 8% and 7% of net
sales, while the top five customers accounted for 54% of net sales. In 2003, the Company’s top four
customers individually accounted for approximately 17%, 11%, 9% and 9% of net sales, while the top five
customers accounted for approximately 53% of net sales. In 2002, the Company’s top four customers
individually accounted for 13%, 13%, 10% and 10% of net sales, while the top five customers accounted
for 52% of net sales. Accounts receivable from the Company’s five largest customers aggregated
approximately $65,319 and $51,240 at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined using the last-in, first-out
(LIFO) method for approximately 67% and 68% of the Company’s inventories at December 31, 2004 and
2003, respectively, and by the first-in, first-out (FIFO) or average cost method for all other inventories.
Inventory cost includes material, labor and overhead. Inventories consist of the following at
December 31:

2004 2003

Raw materials************************************************** $27,843 $24,577
Work in progress *********************************************** 11,685 10,277
Finished goods ************************************************* 17,956 13,903

57,484 48,757
Less: LIFO reserve********************************************** (1,087) (710)

$56,397 $48,047
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost and consist of the following at December 31:
2004 2003

Land and land improvements********************************* $ 5,621 $ 5,677
Buildings and improvements********************************** 43,380 42,456
Machinery and equipment************************************ 130,067 115,095
Office furniture and fixtures ********************************** 33,671 31,381
Tooling **************************************************** 62,421 55,628
Vehicles *************************************************** 599 589
Leasehold improvements ************************************ 1,803 1,874

277,562 252,700
Less: Accumulated depreciation ****************************** (163,558) (136,438)

$ 114,004 $ 116,262

Depreciation is provided by both the straight-line and accelerated methods over the estimated useful
lives of the assets. Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 was
$25,137, $21,904 and $21,083, respectively. Depreciable lives within each property classification are
as follows:

Buildings and improvements******************************************** 10–40 years
Machinery and equipment********************************************** 5–20 years
Office furniture and fixtures ******************************************** 3–10 years
Tooling ************************************************************** 2–5 years
Vehicles ************************************************************* 3–5 years
Leasehold improvements ********************************************** 3–8 years

Maintenance and repair expenditures that are not considered improvements and do not extend the
useful life of property are charged to expense as incurred. Expenditures for improvements and major
renewals are capitalized. When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the related cost and
accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts, and any gain or loss on the disposition is
credited or charged to income.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Under Statement of Financial Accounting Standard (SFAS) 142, ‘‘Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets,’’ goodwill is subject to at least an annual assessment for impairment by applying a fair value-
based test. The Company has determined that it has four reporting units and two of these reporting units
have goodwill that was tested for impairment in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 142 as of the
fourth quarter of 2004. The Company used a combination of valuation techniques, which included
consideration of market-based approaches and an income approach, in determining the fair value of the
Company’s applicable reporting units in the annual impairment test of goodwill. The Company believes
that the combination of the valuation models provides a more appropriate valuation of the Company’s
reporting units by taking into account different marketplace participant assumptions. The Company
utilized market and income approaches, specifically the guideline company method (market), the transac-
tion method (market), and the discounted cash flow method (income), in its estimates of fair value of the
Company’s reporting units being tested and an equal weight was given to each of these three methods.
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These methodologies were applied to the reporting units’ adjusted historical and projected financial
performance. Earnings were emphasized in all three methods used. In addition, all three methods
utilized market data in the derivation of a value estimate and are forward-looking in nature. The guideline
company method and the transaction method utilized pricing multiples that are based on the market’s
assessment of future performance, and the discounted cash flow method utilized a market-derived rate
of return to discount anticipated performance.

The initial impairment test indicated that the carrying value of one of the Company’s reporting units
exceeded the corresponding fair value of the reporting unit. The implied fair value of goodwill in this
reporting unit was then determined through the allocation of the fair value to the underlying assets and
liabilities. As of the fourth quarter of 2004, the carrying value of the goodwill in this reporting unit,
which is included in the Control Devices reportable segment, exceeded its implied fair value by
$183.5 million. The corresponding write-down of goodwill to its fair value was reported as a component of
operating loss in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

This goodwill impairment charge resulted primarily from the Company’s change in its strategic
growth initiative, and the resulting focus on the design and development of highly engineered products by
four operating segments. This strategic redirection along with sales and organizational realignment was
completed in the fourth quarter of 2004. Under the provisions of SFAS 131, ‘‘Disclosures about
Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information,’’ two of these four operating segments are aggre-
gated for reporting purposes into the Company’s Vehicle Management & Power Distribution reportable
segment and two are aggregated into the Company Control Devices reportable segment. Factors contrib-
uting to the impairment charge include SFAS 142 provisions requiring the Company to test goodwill for
impairment at a more disaggregated level due to the Company’s realignment into four operating
segments, which also represent the Company’s reporting units for purposes of goodwill impairment
testing.

The change in the carrying value of goodwill by reportable segment during 2004 was as follows:
Vehicle

Management
& Power Control

Distribution Devices Total

Goodwill at beginning of period******************* $ — $ 248,626 $ 248,626
Impairment charge****************************** — (183,450) (183,450)

Goodwill at end of period ************************ $ — $ 65,176 $ 65,176

The Company had the following intangible assets subject to amortization at December 31:
2004 2003

Patents:
Gross carrying amount ***************************************** $ 2,779 $ 2,779
Less: Accumulated amortization ********************************* (1,801) (1,522)

Net carrying amount ******************************************* $ 978 $ 1,257

Aggregate amortization expense on patents was $279 for the years ended December 31, 2004 and
2003, respectively. Estimated annual amortization expense is $279 for 2005 and 2006 and $210 for
2007 and 2008.
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Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities consist of the following at December 31:
2004 2003

Compensation-related obligations********************************* $15,957 $14,387
Insurance-related obligations************************************* 7,206 6,796
Income tax-related obligations************************************ 7,114 9,945
Warranty-related obligations************************************** 4,859 5,515
Other ********************************************************* 19,348 16,140

$54,484 $52,783

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes using the provisions of SFAS 109, ‘‘Accounting for Income
Taxes.’’ Deferred income taxes reflect the tax consequences on future years of differences between the
tax basis of assets and liabilities and their financial reporting amounts. Future tax benefits are recog-
nized to the extent that realization of such benefits is determined to be ‘‘more likely than not.’’

Currency Translation

The financial statements of foreign subsidiaries, where the local currency is the functional currency,
are translated into U.S. dollars using exchange rates in effect at the end of the period for assets and
liabilities and average exchange rates during each reporting period for the results of operations.
Adjustments resulting from translation of financial statements are reflected as a component of accumu-
lated other comprehensive income (loss). Foreign currency transactions are remeasured into the func-
tional currency using translation rates in effect at the time of the transaction, with the resulting
adjustments included in the results of operations.

Revenue Recognition and Sales Commitments

The Company recognizes revenues from the sale of products, net of actual and estimated returns, at
the point of passage of title, which is generally at the time of shipment. Actual and estimated returns are
based on authorized returns and historical trends of sales returns. The Company often enters into
agreements with its customers at the beginning of a given vehicle’s expected production life. Once such
agreements are entered into, it is the Company’s obligation to fulfill the customers’ purchasing require-
ments for the entire production life of the vehicle. These agreements are subject to renegotiation, which
may affect product pricing.

Bad Debts

The Company evaluates the collectibility of accounts receivable based on a combination of factors.
In circumstances where the Company is aware of a specific customer’s inability to meet its financial
obligations, a specific allowance for doubtful accounts is recorded against amounts due to reduce the
net recognized receivable to the amount the Company reasonably believes will be collected. Addition-
ally, the Company reviews historical trends for collectibility in determining an estimate for its allowance
for doubtful accounts. If economic circumstances change substantially, estimates of the recoverability
of amounts due to the Company could be reduced by a material amount. The Company does not have
collateral requirements with its customers.
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Warranty Reserves

The Company’s warranty reserve is established based on the Company’s best estimate of the
amounts necessary to settle future and existing claims on products sold as of the balance sheet date.
The following is a reconciliation of the changes in the Company’s warranty reserve at December 31:

2004 2003

Warranty reserve at beginning of period **************************** $ 5,515 $ 4,248
Payments made ************************************************* (4,177) (3,388)
Costs recognized for warranties issued during the period ************* 4,033 4,644
Changes in estimates for preexisting warranties ********************* (512) 11

Warranty reserve at end of period ********************************* $ 4,859 $ 5,515

Product Development Expenses

Expenses associated with the development of new products and changes to existing products are
charged to expense as incurred. These costs amounted to $36,145, $28,714 and $25,332 in 2004,
2003 and 2002, respectively.

Share-Based Compensation

At December 31, 2004, the Company had two share-based compensation plans, which are de-
scribed more fully in Note 7. Prior to 2003, the Company accounted for employee share options granted
under these plans using the intrinsic value method provisions of Accounting Principles Board Opinion No.
(APB) 25, ‘‘Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,’’ and related interpretations. No share-based
employee compensation cost was recognized in 2002, as all options granted under these plans had an
exercise price equal to the market value of the underlying common shares on the date of grant. Effective
January 1, 2003, the Company adopted the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS 123, ‘‘Accounting
for Stock-Based Compensation,’’ prospectively to all employee awards granted, modified or settled after
January 1, 2003, under the disclosure provisions of SFAS 148, ‘‘Accounting for Stock-Based Compensa-
tion — Transition and Disclosure — an amendment of SFAS 123.’’ Option awards under the Company’s
plans cliff-vest over periods ranging from one to five years, and compensation expense is recognized on
a straight-line basis. Restricted share awards vest over a period of one to three years and compensation
expense is also recognized on a straight-line basis. Because the Company adopted the fair value
recognition provisions of SFAS 123 on a prospective basis, the cost related to share-based employee
compensation recognized in 2004 and 2003 is less than that which would have been recognized if the
fair value based method had been applied to all awards granted since the original effective date of
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SFAS 123. The following table illustrates the effect on net (loss) income and net (loss) income per share
if the fair value based method had been applied to all outstanding and unvested awards in each period.

For the Years Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002

Net (loss) income, as reported *********************** $(92,503) $21,379 $(48,778)
Add: Share-based employee compensation expense

included in reported net income, net of related tax
effects ****************************************** 868 810 —

Deduct: Total share-based employee compensation
expense determined under the fair value based
method for all awards, net of related tax effects ***** (906) (1,306) (1,347)

Pro forma net (loss) income ************************* $(92,541) $20,883 $(50,125)

Net (loss) income per share:
Basic — as reported ****************************** $ (4.09) $ 0.95 $ (2.18)
Basic — pro forma******************************** $ (4.09) $ 0.93 $ (2.24)

Diluted — as reported***************************** $ (4.09) $ 0.94 $ (2.16)
Diluted — pro forma ****************************** $ (4.09) $ 0.92 $ (2.22)

The fair value of options granted was estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-
pricing model with the following weighted-average assumptions:

2004 2003 2002

Risk-free interest rate ********************** 1.43% 1.75% — 2.05% 4.71%
Expected dividend yield********************* 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Expected lives***************************** 1.0 year 3.0 years 7.5 years
Expected volatility ************************* 35.18% 46.52% — 46.59% 59.47%

The Black-Scholes option-pricing model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded
options that have no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. Option valuation models require the
input of highly subjective assumptions including expected share price volatility and expected option
lives.

The fair value of restricted shares granted was calculated using the market value of the shares on
the date of issuance.

Financial Instruments and Derivative Financial Instruments

Financial instruments held by the Company include cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable,
accounts payable, long-term debt and forward currency contracts. The carrying value of cash and cash
equivalents, accounts receivable and accounts payable is considered to be representative of fair value
because of the short maturity of these instruments. The carrying value of the Company’s variable rate
debt approximates its fair value. Refer to Note 9 of the Company’s consolidated financial statements for
fair value disclosures of the Company’s fixed rate debt, and foreign currency forward contracts.

Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting princi-
ples requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
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assets and liabilities, including certain self-insured risks and liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabili-
ties at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Because actual results could differ from those estimates, the
Company revises its estimates and assumptions as new information becomes available.

Net (Loss) Income Per Share

Net (loss) income per share amounts for all periods are presented in accordance with SFAS 128,
‘‘Earnings per Share,’’ which requires the presentation of basic net (loss) income per share and diluted
net (loss) income per share. Basic net (loss) income per share was computed by dividing net (loss)
income by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding for each respective period.
Diluted net (loss) income per share was calculated by dividing net (loss) income by the weighted-average
of all potentially dilutive common shares that were outstanding during the periods presented. Actual
weighted-average shares outstanding used in calculating basic and diluted net (loss) income per share
were as follows:

For the Years Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002

Basic weighted average shares outstanding **** 22,622,188 22,414,759 22,399,311
Effect of dilutive securities******************* — 267,826 227,689

Diluted weighted average shares outstanding ** 22,622,188 22,682,585 22,627,000

Diluted net loss per share for 2004, as reported in the Company’s Statements of Operations in
accordance with SFAS 128, disregards the effect of potentially dilutive common shares, as a net
operating loss causes dilutive shares to have an anti-dilutive effect.

Options to purchase 225,000, 481,000 and 497,000 common shares at an average price of
$16.56, $16.22 and $16.22 per share were outstanding at December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. These outstanding options were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per
share because their respective exercise prices were greater than the average market price of common
shares and, therefore, their effect would have been anti-dilutive.

Comprehensive (Loss) Income

SFAS 130, ‘‘Reporting Comprehensive Income,’’ establishes standards for the reporting and display
of comprehensive income. Other comprehensive income includes foreign currency translation adjust-
ments and gains and losses from certain foreign currency transactions, the effective portion of gains
and losses on certain hedging activities, minimum pension liability adjustments, and unrealized gains
and losses on available-for-sale marketable securities.

Balances of each after-tax component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), as
reported in the Statement of Consolidated Shareholders’ Equity as of December 31, are as follows:

2004 2003 2002

Currency translation adjustments ************************ $ 7,143 $ 2,458 $(1,350)
Amortization of terminated derivatives ******************* — — (620)
Minimum pension liability adjustments ******************* (3,488) (1,264) (821)
Unrealized loss on marketable securities ***************** (69) (81) (202)

$ 3,586 $ 1,113 $(2,993)

35



STONERIDGE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)
(in thousands, except share and per share data, unless otherwise indicated)

Impairment of Assets

The Company reviews its long-lived assets and intangible assets with finite lives for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be
recoverable. Except for the impairment of goodwill, no significant impairment charges were recorded in
2004, 2003 and 2002. Impairment would be recognized when events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of the asset may not be recovered. Measurement of the amount of
impairment may be based on appraisal, market values of similar assets or estimated discounted future
cash flows resulting from the use and ultimate disposition of the asset.

Accounting Standards

In January 2003, the FASB issued interpretation (FIN) 46, ‘‘Consolidation of Variable Interest
Entities — an Interpretation of ARB No. 51.’’ FIN 46 requires unconsolidated variable interest entities to
be consolidated by their primary beneficiaries if the entities do not effectively disperse the risks and
rewards of ownership among their owners and other parties involved. The provisions of FIN 46 were
applicable immediately to all variable interest entities created after January 31, 2003. In December
2003, the FASB issued FIN 46R, ‘‘Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities — an Interpretation of ARB
No. 51 (revised December 2003),’’ which includes significant amendments to previously issued FIN 46.
Among other things, FIN 46R includes revised transition dates for public entities, which required the
Company to adopt the provisions of FIN 46 as of March 31, 2004. The adoption of this interpretation did
not impact the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In December 2003, the FASB revised SFAS 132 ‘‘Employers’ Disclosures about Pensions and Other
Postretirement Benefits.’’ This statement revises employers’ disclosures about pension and other
postretirement benefit plans. It does not change the measurement or recognition of those plans required
by SFAS Nos. 87, 88 and 106. The revised SFAS requires additional disclosures about the assets,
obligations, cash flows and net periodic benefit cost of defined benefit pension plans and other defined
benefit postretirement plans. This Statement became effective for the year ended after June 15, 2004.
The additional disclosure requirements are included in Note 8 to the Company’s consolidated financial
statements.

In December 2003, the Medicare Prescription Drug Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003
(the Act) was signed into law. The Act introduced a prescription drug benefit under Medicare as well as a
federal subsidy to sponsors of retiree health care benefit plans that provide a benefit that is at least
actuarially equivalent to the benefit established by law. In May 2004, the FASB issued FASB Staff
Position (FSP) FAS 106-2 (FAS 106-2), ‘‘Accounting and Disclosure Requirements Related to the Medi-
care Prescription Drug Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003.’’ The FSP provides guidance on
how to account for the federal subsidy. The Company adopted FAS 106-2 in 2004 and it did not have a
material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS 123R, ‘‘Share-Based Payment,’’ which requires all
companies to measure compensation cost for all share-based payments (including employee share
options) at fair value. This Statement becomes effective for interim period beginning after June 15, 2005.
The Company adopted the fair-value provisions of SFAS 123 in 2003; therefore, this standard is not
expected to have a material impact the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS 151, ‘‘Inventory Costs,’’ as an amendment to ARB
No. 43, Chapter 4, ‘‘Inventory Pricing,’’ to clarify the accounting for abnormal amounts of idle facility
expense, freight, handling costs and wasted materials (spoilage). This Statement requires that these
items be recognized as current-period charges and requires the allocation of fixed production overheads
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to inventory based on the normal capacity of the production facilities. This Statement becomes effective
for inventory costs incurred during fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2005. The Company does not
expect the adoption of SFAS 151 to have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements.

In December 2004, the FASB issued two FSP’s that provide accounting guidance on how companies
should account for the effects of the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (the Act) that was signed into
law in October 2004. The Act could affect how companies report their deferred income tax balances.
The first FSP is FSP FAS 109-1 (FAS 109-1); the second is FSP FAS 109-2 (FAS 109-2). In FAS 109-1,
the FASB concluded that the tax relief (special tax deduction for domestic manufacturing companies)
from the Act should be accounted for as a ‘‘special deduction’’ instead of a tax rate reduction. The
Company has reviewed FSP FAS 109-1. The Company has not issued financial statements that treat the
‘‘domestic manufacturing deduction’’ as a rate reduction. Therefore, FSP FAS 109-1 did not impact the
Company’s financial statements for 2004. The Company will treat the domestic manufacturing deduc-
tion as a special deduction in financial statements issued for 2005 and forward. FAS 109-2 gives
companies additional time to evaluate the effects of the Act on any plan for reinvestment or repatriation
of foreign earnings for purposes of applying SFAS 109, ‘‘Accounting for Income Taxes.’’ However,
companies must provide certain disclosures if it chooses to utilize the additional time granted by the
FASB. The Company did not repatriate foreign earnings during 2004. It is management’s intent not to
repatriate foreign earnings during 2005 and beyond. Therefore, no disclosure is required. These FSP’s,
which were effective immediately, did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated
financial statements.

Reclassifications

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to their 2004 presentation in the
consolidated financial statements.

3. Investments

The Company has a 50% interest in PST Industria Eletronica da Amazonia Ltda. (PST), a Brazilian
electronic components business that specializes in electronic vehicle security devices. The investment is
accounted for under the equity method of accounting. The Company’s investment in PST was $15,323
and $13,309 at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The Company had a note receivable with
PST of $1,148 and $5,843, as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. A significant portion of
the note receivable was paid back to the Company in 2004. Equity earnings (losses) of PST of $1,677,
$1,288 and $(763) for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, were
classified as other income (expense) in the consolidated statements of operations.

The Company has a 20% interest in Minda Instruments LTD (Minda), a company based in India that
manufactures electronic instrumentation equipment for the automotive and truck markets. The invest-
ment is accounted for under the equity method of accounting. The Company’s investment in Minda was
$781 at December 31, 2004. Equity earnings of Minda of $21, for the year ended December 31, 2004
were classified as other income in the consolidated statements of operations.

4. Long-Term Debt

On May 1, 2002, the Company issued $200.0 million aggregate principal amount of senior notes.
The $200.0 million notes bear interest at an annual rate of 11.50% and mature on May 1, 2012. The
senior notes are redeemable in May 2007 at 105.75. Interest is payable on May 1 and November 1 of
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each year. On July 1, 2002, the Company completed an exchange offer of the senior notes for substan-
tially identical notes registered under the Securities Act of 1933.

In conjunction with the issuance of the senior notes, the Company also entered into a new
$200.0 million credit agreement with a bank group. The credit agreement had the following components:
a $100.0 million revolving facility (of which $96.2 million was available at December 31, 2004, after
consideration of outstanding letters of credit), which includes a $10.0 million swing line facility, and a
$100.0 million term facility. The revolving facility expires on April 30, 2008 and requires a commitment
fee of 0.375% to 0.500% on the unused balance. The revolving facility permits the Company to borrow up
to half its borrowings in specified foreign currencies. Interest is payable quarterly at either (i) the prime
rate plus a margin of 0.25% to 1.25% or (ii) LIBOR plus a margin of 1.75% to 2.75%, depending upon
the Company’s ratio of consolidated total debt to consolidated earnings before interest, taxes, deprecia-
tion and amortization (EBITDA), as defined. Interest on the swing line facility is payable monthly at the
quoted overnight borrowing rate plus a margin of 1.75% to 2.75%, depending upon the Company’s ratio
of consolidated total debt to consolidated EBITDA, as defined. The Company prepaid the entire outstand-
ing balance of the term facility during 2003.

The weighted average interest rate in effect for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and
2002 was approximately 11.50%, 10.24% and 9.53%, respectively, including the effects of the interest
rate swap agreements.

Long-term debt consisted of the following at December 31:
2004 2003

111/2% Senior notes, due 2012******************************** $200,000 $200,000
Other ******************************************************* 161 662

200,161 200,662
Less: Current portion***************************************** 109 417

$200,052 $200,245

The credit agreement contains various covenants that require, among other things, the maintenance
of certain specified ratios of consolidated total debt to consolidated EBITDA, interest coverage and fixed
charge coverage. Restrictions also include limits on capital expenditures, operating leases and divi-
dends. The Company was in compliance with all covenants at December 31, 2004.

Future maturities of long-term debt at December 31, 2004 are as follows:

2005 ****************************************************************** $ 109
2006 ****************************************************************** 52
2007 ****************************************************************** —
2008 ****************************************************************** —
2009 ****************************************************************** —
Thereafter************************************************************** 200,000

$200,161

5. Income Taxes

The provisions for income taxes on income before cumulative effect of accounting change included
in the accompanying consolidated financial statements represent federal, state and foreign income
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taxes. The components of (loss) income before income taxes and the provision for income taxes before
cumulative effect of accounting change consists of the following:

For the Years Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002

(Loss) income before income taxes and cumulative
effect of accounting change
Domestic *************************************** $(161,275) $21,305 $30,137
Foreign ***************************************** 12,119 9,715 2,181

$(149,156) $31,020 $32,318

Income tax (benefit) provision
Current:

Federal *************************************** $ (3,638) $ (2,082) $ (2,339)
State and foreign ****************************** 4,548 3,430 2,820

910 1,348 481

Deferred:
Federal *************************************** (64,981) 7,130 10,186
State and foreign ****************************** 7,418 1,163 595

(57,563) 8,293 10,781

$ (56,653) $ 9,641 $11,262

A reconciliation of the Company’s effective income tax rate to the statutory federal tax rate for is as
follows:

2004 2003 2002

Statutory U.S. federal income tax rate **************************** (35.0)% 35.0% 35.0%
State income taxes, net of federal tax benefit ********************* (0.7) 1.2 2.8
Tax credits **************************************************** (1.2) (2.6) (2.3)
Goodwill amortization******************************************* 1.3 — —
Tax benefit for export sales ************************************* (0.4) (3.1) (6.0)
Foreign rate differential ***************************************** (1.8) (2.6) 1.0
Other********************************************************* (0.2) 3.2 4.3

Effective income tax rate *************************************** (38.0)% 31.1% 34.8%

For the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Company’s effective tax rate decreased
from 31.1% to (38.0)%. The effective tax rate for 2004 decreased primarily due to the tax benefit
recognized on the loss. The rate decrease was marginally impacted by a reduction in state taxes which
was offset by a reduction in credits and the impact of the goodwill impairment charge.

Unremitted earnings of foreign subsidiaries were $20,538, $11,062 and $12,046 as of Decem-
ber 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Because these earnings have been indefinitely reinvested in
foreign operations, no provision has been made for U.S. income taxes. It is impracticable to determine
the amount of unrecognized deferred taxes with respect to these earnings; however, foreign tax credits
should be available to reduce U.S. income taxes in the event of a distribution.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities consisted of the following at December 31:
2004 2003

Deferred tax assets:
Inventories ************************************************** $ 1,868 $ 1,878
Employee benefits ******************************************* 1,445 2,281
Insurance *************************************************** 1,664 1,877
Depreciation and amortization ********************************* 35,462 —
Net operating loss carryforwards ****************************** 3,141 3,379
General business credit carryforwards************************** 4,110 2,382
Other nondeductible reserves ********************************* 9,880 6,929

Gross deferred tax assets ************************************** 57,570 18,726
Valuation allowance ******************************************** (5,813) (2,557)

Net deferred tax assets **************************************** 51,757 16,169

Deferred tax liabilities:
Depreciation and amortization ********************************* — (26,241)
Other******************************************************* (3,675) (694)

Gross deferred tax liabilities ************************************ (3,675) (26,935)

Net deferred tax asset (liability)********************************** $48,082 $(10,766)

The valuation allowance represents the amount of tax benefit related to a net operating loss and
state deferred tax assets, which management believes are not likely to be realized.

The Company has deferred tax assets for net operating loss carryforwards of $367, net of a
valuation allowance of $2,774. These net operating losses relate to foreign tax jurisdictions with indefi-
nite expiration dates. The Company has deferred tax assets for general business credit carryforwards of
$4,110. The general business credit carryforwards expire beginning in 2021 through 2024.

6. Operating Lease Commitments

The Company leases equipment, vehicles and buildings from third parties under operating lease
agreements.

D.M. Draime, Chairman of the Company, is a 50% owner of Hunters Square, Inc. (‘‘HSI’’), an Ohio
corporation, which owns Hunters Square, an office complex and shopping mall located in Warren, Ohio.
The Company leases office space in Hunters Square. The Company pays all maintenance, tax and
insurance costs related to the operation of the office. Lease payments made by the Company to HSI were
$301, $301 and $357 in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The lease terminates in December 2009.
The Company believes the terms of the lease are no less favorable to it than would be the terms of a
third-party lease.

For the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, lease expense totaled $6,455, $6,874
and $7,142, including related party lease expense of $301, $451 and $509, respectively.
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Future minimum operating lease commitments at December 31, 2004 are as follows:
Third Related
Party Party

2005*********************************************************** $ 5,138 $ 342
2006*********************************************************** 4,784 342
2007*********************************************************** 4,024 342
2008*********************************************************** 2,873 342
2009*********************************************************** 2,070 342
Thereafter ****************************************************** 7,515 —

$26,404 $1,710

7. Share-Based Compensation Plans

In October 1997, the Company adopted a Long-Term Incentive Plan (the Incentive Plan). The Com-
pany has reserved 2,500,000 Common Shares for issuance to key management level employees under
the Incentive Plan. Under the Incentive Plan, the Company has granted cumulative options to
purchase 1,594,500 Common Shares to management with exercise prices equal to the fair market value
of the Company’s Common Shares on the date of grant. The options issued cliff-vest ratably from one to
five years after the date of grant. Under the Incentive Plan, the Company has also granted 108,400
restricted shares to management with a compensation value equal to the market value on the date of
issuance. The restricted shares issued vest over a one to three-year period. Restricted shares awarded
under the Incentive Plan entitle the shareholder to all the rights of Common Share ownership except that
the shares may not be sold, transferred, pledged, exchanged, or otherwise disposed of during the
restriction period.

In May 2002, the Company adopted a Director Share Option Plan (the Director Plan). The Company
has reserved 500,000 Common Shares for issuance under the Director Plan. Under the Director Plan,
the Company has granted cumulative options to purchase 146,000 Common Shares to directors of the
Company with exercise prices equal to the fair market value of the Company’s Common Shares on the
date of grant. The options granted cliff-vest one year after the date of grant.
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Information relating to the Company’s outstanding share options is as follows:
Weighted-

Share Exercise Average
Options Prices Exercise Price

Outstanding at December 31, 2001************ 936,500 5.13-17.50 12.03
Granted in 2002*************************** 317,000 7.93 7.93
Forfeited in 2002 ************************** (21,500) 5.13-17.50 13.51
Exercised in 2002 ************************* (2,000) 5.13 5.13

Outstanding at December 31, 2002************ 1,230,000 5.13-17.50 10.96
Granted in 2003*************************** 338,000 10.39-11.64 10.48
Forfeited in 2003 ************************** (18,500) 5.13-17.50 12.98
Exercised in 2003 ************************* (59,400) 5.13-14.72 7.47

Outstanding at December 31, 2003************ 1,490,100 5.13-17.50 11.00
Granted in 2004*************************** 60,000 15.73 15.73
Forfeited in 2004 ************************** (261,250) 10.39-17.50 17.24
Exercised in 2004 ************************* (460,000) 5.13-14.72 7.51

Outstanding at December 31, 2004************ 828,850 5.13-17.50 11.24

Of the options issued and outstanding under both the Incentive Plan and the Director Plan, 564,100,
833,100 and 587,000 were exercisable as of December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The
weighted-average exercise price of options exercisable at the end of the year was $11.08, $12.15 and
$15.40 per share at December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The weighted-average fair value
of options granted during the year were $2.28, $5.39 and $6.37 per share at December 31, 2004,
2003 and 2002, respectively.

Options Outstanding
Options ExercisableWeighted-

Share Average Weighted- Weighted-
Options Remaining Average Shares Average

Range of Exercise Prices Outstanding Contractual Life Exercise Price Exercisable Exercise Price

$5.13 98,000 6 years $ 5.13 98,000 $ 5.13
$7.82 — $8.40 223,600 6 years $ 8.02 221,100 $ 8.03

$10.39 — $11.64 228,250 8 years $10.53 26,000 $11.64
$14.72 — $15.73 114,000 7 years $15.25 54,000 $14.72
$16.44 — $17.50 165,000 3 years $17.44 165,000 $17.44

828,850 6 years $11.24 564,100 $11.08

During 2004, 108,400 restricted shares were issued with a one to three-year restriction period at
market prices ranging from $13.68 to $16.89. At December 31, 2004, the weighted-average grant-date
fair value of restricted shares awarded by the Company was $15.15. At December 31, 2004, 100,100
restricted shares were outstanding.

8. Employee Benefit Plans

The Company has certain defined contribution profit sharing and 401(k) plans covering substantially
all of its employees. Company contributions are generally discretionary; however, a portion of these
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contributions is based upon a percentage of employee compensation, as defined in the plans. The
Company’s policy is to fund all benefit costs accrued. For the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003
and 2002, expenses related to these plans amounted to $4,134, $3,757 and $345, respectively.

The Company has a single defined benefit pension plan that covers certain employees in the United
Kingdom and a single postretirement benefit plan that covers certain employees in the U.S. The
following table sets forth the benefit obligation, fair value of plan assets, and the funded status of the
Company’s plans; amounts recognized in the Company’s financial statements; and the principal
weighted average assumptions used:

Pension Benefit Plan Postretirement Benefit Plan
2004 2003 2004 2003

Change in projected benefit obligation:
Projected benefit obligation at

beginning of year**************** $ 15,170 $ 13,120 $ 1,983 $ 1,752
Service cost********************** 73 490 98 98
Interest cost ********************* 879 800 95 109
Participant contributions *********** — 180 — —
Curtailment ********************** — (1,945) — —
Actuarial loss (gain) *************** 3,242 1,634 (284) 95
Benefits paid ********************* (659) (751) (78) (71)
Translation adjustments *********** 1,280 1,642 — —

Projected benefit obligation at end of
year *************************** $ 19,985 $ 15,170 $ 1,814 $ 1,983

Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at

beginning of year**************** $ 13,564 $ 10,882 $ — $ —
Actual return on plan assets ******* 1,575 1,699 — —
Employer contributions************* 37 245 78 71
Participant contributions *********** — 180 — —
Benefits paid ********************* (659) (751) (78) (71)
Translation adjustments *********** 1,042 1,309 — —

Fair value of plan assets at end of
year *************************** $ 15,559 $ 13,564 $ — $ —

Funded status ********************** $ (4,426) $ (1,606) $ (1,814) $ (1,983)
Unrecognized actuarial loss (gain)***** 4,982 2,106 (88) 197

Net amount recognized ************** $ 556 $ 500 $ (1,902) $ (1,786)
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Pension Benefit Plan Postretirement Benefit Plan
2004 2003 2004 2003

Amounts recognized in the
consolidated balance sheet consist
of:
Accrued liabilities ***************** $ (4,426) $ (1,606) $ (1,902) $ (1,786)
Accumulated other comprehensive

income ************************ 4,982 2,106 — —

Net amount recognized ************ $ 556 $ 500 $ (1,902) $ (1,786)

Weighted average assumptions used to
determine benefit obligation at
December 31:
Discount rate********************* 5.30% 5.75% 5.75% 6.00%
Rate of increase to pensions in

payments ********************** 3.00% 3.00% N/A N/A
Rate of future price inflation******** 2.75% 2.75% N/A N/A
Initial health care cost trend rate *** N/A N/A 12.00% 12.00%
Ultimate health care cost trend rate N/A N/A 6.00% 6.00%
Year that the ultimate trend rate is

reached************************ N/A N/A 2010 2010
Measurement date **************** 12/31/04 12/31/03 12/31/04 12/31/03

Weighted average assumptions used to
determine net periodic benefit cost
for the years ended December 31:
Discount rate********************* 5.75% 6.00% 6.00% 6.50%
Expected long-term return on plan

assets************************* 7.25% 7.25% N/A N/A
Rate of increase to compensation

levels************************** N/A 3.25% 4.00% 4.00%
Rate of increase to pensions in

payments ********************** 3.00% 3.00% N/A N/A
Rate of future price inflation******** 2.75% 2.25% N/A N/A
Initial health care cost trend rate *** N/A N/A 12.00% 10.00%
Ultimate health care cost trend rate N/A N/A 6.00% 5.50%
Year that the ultimate trend rate is

reached************************ N/A N/A 2010 2008
Measurement date **************** 12/31/04 12/31/03 12/31/03 12/31/02

The Company’s expected long-term return on plan assets assumption is based on a periodic review
and modeling of the plan’s asset allocation and liability structure over a long-term horizon. Expectations
of returns for each asset class are the most important of the assumptions used in the review and
modeling and are based on comprehensive reviews of historical data and economic/financial market
theory. The expected long-term rate of return on assets was selected from within the reasonable range of
rates determined by (a) historical real returns, net of inflation, for the asset classes covered by the
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investment policy, and (b) projections of inflation over the long-term period during which benefits are
payable to plan participants.

Components of net periodic pension and postretirement benefit cost are as follows:
Pension Benefit Plan Postretirement Benefit Plan

2004 2003 2002 2004 2003 2002

Service cost ************************* $ 73 $490 $630 $ 98 $ 98 $ 69
Interest cost ************************* 879 800 735 95 109 98
Expected return on plan assets********* (989) (784) (825) — — —
Amortization of actuarial loss ********** 55 180 — — — —

Net periodic benefit cost************* $ 18 $686 $540 $193 $207 $167

The Company has one non-pension postretirement benefit plan. The healthcare portion of the plan is
contributory, with participants’ contributions adjusted annually; the life insurance portion of the plan is
noncontributory. Assumed healthcare cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts re-
ported for the healthcare portion. A 1% point change in assumed healthcare cost trend rates would have
the following effects:

1% Point 1% Point
Increase Decrease

Effect on total of service and interest cost components *************** $ 2 $ (1)
Effect on postretirement benefit obligation *************************** $28 $(26)

In December 2003, the Medicare Prescription Drug Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003
(the Act) was signed into law. The Act introduced a prescription drug benefit under Medicare (Medicare
Part D) as well as a federal subsidy to sponsors of retiree health care benefit plans that provide a benefit
that is at least actuarially equivalent to Medicare Part D. As of December 31, 2004, the Company
recognized the effects of the Act in the measure of its projected and accumulated benefit obligation
under its postretirement benefit plan in accordance with FSP FAS 106-2 and it did not have a material
impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

The projected benefit obligation, accumulated benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets for the
Company’s defined benefit pension plan were $19,985, $19,985 and $15,559, respectively, as of
December 31, 2004 and $15,170, $15,170 and $13,564, respectively, as of December 31, 2003.

The Company’s defined benefit pension plan fair value weighted-average asset allocations at Decem-
ber 31 by asset category are as follows:

2004 2003

Asset Category
Equity securities****************************************************** 78% 78%
Debt securities******************************************************* 21 21
Other *************************************************************** 1 1

Total ************************************************************** 100% 100%
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The Company’s target asset allocation as of December 31, 2004, by asset category, is as follows:

Asset Category
Equity securities ************************************************************* 75%
Debt securities ************************************************************** 25%

The Company’s investment policy for the defined benefit pension plan includes various guidelines
and procedures designed to ensure assets are invested in a manner necessary to meet expected future
benefits earned by participants. The investment guidelines consider a broad range of economic condi-
tions. Central to the policy are target allocation ranges (shown above) by major asset categories. The
objectives of the target allocations are to maintain investment portfolios that diversify risk through
prudent asset allocation parameters, achieve asset returns that meet or exceed the plans’ actuarial
assumptions, and achieve asset returns that are competitive with like institutions employing similar
investment strategies. The Company and a designated third-party fiduciary periodically review the invest-
ment policy. The policy is established and administered in a manner so as to comply at all times with
applicable government regulations.

The Company expects to contribute $183 to its defined benefit pension plan in 2005. The following
pension and postretirement benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are
expected to be paid:

Pension Postretirement
Benefit Plan Benefit Plan

2005 ***************************************************** $ 440 $ 78
2006 ***************************************************** 495 83
2007 ***************************************************** 550 79
2008 ***************************************************** 531 81
2009 ***************************************************** 568 82
2010 to 2014 ********************************************* 4,396 455

The provisions of SFAS 87, ‘‘Employers’ Accounting for Pensions,’’ require the Company to record an
additional minimum liability for the defined benefit pension plan of $2,876 and $738 at December 31,
2004 and 2003, respectively. This liability represents the amount by which the accumulated benefit
obligation exceeds the sum of the fair market value of plan assets and accrued amounts previously
recorded. A corresponding charge was recorded as a component of accumulated other comprehensive
income of $2,224 and $443, net of related tax benefits of $653 and $295, at December 31, 2004 and
2003, respectively.

On December 31, 2003 the Company amended the defined benefit pension plan to eliminate the
linkage between future service and salary derived plan benefits. The defined benefit plan will continue to
provide certain life insurance and disability benefits to participants. Affected members of the plan,
which numbered 159, were offered membership in the Company’s defined contribution plan. As a result
of the curtailment, the projected benefit obligation of the plan was reduced by $1,945 in 2003.

9. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is cash or a contract that imposes an obligation to deliver, or conveys a right
to receive cash or another financial instrument. The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents,
accounts receivable and accounts payable are considered to be representative of their fair value
because of the short maturity of these instruments. The estimated fair value of the Company’s senior
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notes (fixed rate debt) at December 31, 2004, per quoted market sources, was $231.3 million and the
carrying value was $200.0 million.

The Company uses derivative financial instruments to reduce exposure to market risks resulting from
fluctuations in interest rates (swaps) and currency rates (forward contracts). The Company does not
enter into financial instruments for speculative or profit motivated purposes. Management believes that
its use of these instruments to reduce risk is in the Company’s best interest. At December 31, 2004
and 2003, the Company had no outstanding interest rate swaps.

In order to manage the interest rate risk associated with the Company’s previous debt portfolio, the
Company entered into interest rate swap agreements. These agreements required the Company to pay a
fixed interest rate to counterparties while receiving a floating interest rate based on LIBOR. The
counterparties to each of the interest rate swap agreements were major commercial banks. These
agreements were due to mature on or before December 31, 2003 and qualified as cash flow hedges;
however, as a result of the Company’s debt refinancing, these agreements were terminated on May 1,
2002. Hedging activities recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) are as follows:

For the Years Ended
December 31,

2003 2002

Amortization of terminated swap agreements, pre-tax ****************** $ 991 $ 4,283
Tax effect********************************************************* (372) (1,606)

Amortization of terminated swap agreements, net of tax *************** $ 620 $ 2,677

Change in fair value of swap agreements, pre-tax********************** $ — $ 1,408
Tax effect********************************************************* — (394)

Change in fair value of swap agreements, net of tax ******************* $ — $ 1,014

As of December 31, 2003 these terminated swap agreements were fully amortized into income.

The Company has entered into foreign currency forward purchase contracts with a notional value of
58.4 million of Swedish krona to reduce exposure related to the Company’s krona denominated receiv-
ables and 2.0 million of British pounds to reduce exposure related to the Company’s pound denomi-
nated payables. The estimated fair value of these forward contracts at December 31, 2004, per quoted
market sources, was $(1.1) million. These forward contracts are marked to market, with gains and
losses recognized in the consolidated statement of operations as a component of other income (ex-
pense). The Company’s foreign currency forward purchase contracts substantially offset losses and
gains on the underlying foreign denominated receivables and payables.

10. Commitments and Contingencies

In the ordinary course of business, the Company is involved in various legal proceedings, workers’
compensation and product liability disputes. The Company is of the opinion that the ultimate resolution
of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the results of operations, cash flows or the
financial position of the Company.

On January 15, 2004, a judgment was entered against the Company in the District Court (365th

Judicial District) in Maverick County, Texas. The plaintiffs alleged in their complaint that a Company fuel
valve installed as a replacement part on a truck caused a fire after an accident resulting in a death. The
plaintiffs are the parents of the decedent. The judgment entered against the Company was approxi-
mately $36.5 million. The Company denies the claim that its fuel valve contributed to the fire. The trial

47



STONERIDGE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)
(in thousands, except share and per share data, unless otherwise indicated)

court denied a motion for a new trial and other relief. An appeal of this judgment has been filed. The
Company believes that there are valid grounds to reverse the judgment on appeal. If successful, the
appeal may alter or eliminate the amount of the existing judgment. While legal proceedings are subject to
inherent uncertainty, the Company believes that it is reasonably possible that this award will be
substantially altered or eliminated by the appellate court. Consequently, in the opinion of management
and the Company’s legal counsel, it is not possible to estimate the outcome of such uncertainty at this
time. The Company will record a provision for any liability in this case, if and at the time that management
and counsel conclude a loss is probable. Based upon advice received from the Company’s legal
counsel, the Company believes a loss resulting from this matter is not probable at December 31, 2004.
Even at full judgment, however, the Company’s exposure is significantly less than the $36.5 million
mentioned above, as it has been mitigated with appropriate levels of insurance.

11. Related Party Transactions

Avery Cohen, a director of the Company, is a partner in Baker & Hostetler LLP, a law firm, which has
served as general outside counsel for the Company since 1993 and is expected to continue to do so in
the future. The Company paid $1,255, $940 and $1,082 in legal fees to Baker & Hostetler LLP for the
years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

See Note 6 to the Company’s consolidated financial statements for information on the Company’s
related party transactions involving operating leases.

12. Segment Reporting

SFAS 131, ‘‘Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information,’’ establishes
standards for reporting information about operating segments in financial statements. Operating seg-
ments are defined as components of an enterprise that are evaluated regularly by the Company’s chief
operating decision maker in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing performance. The
Company’s chief operating decision maker is the Chief Executive Officer.

The Company has two reportable segments: Vehicle Management & Power Distribution and Control
Devices. These reportable segments were determined based on the differences in the nature of the
products offered. The Vehicle Management & Power Distribution reportable segment produces electronic
instrument clusters, electronic control units, driver information systems and electrical distribution
systems, primarily wiring harnesses and connectors for electrical power and signal distribution. The
Control Devices reportable segment produces electronic and electromechanical switches, control actua-
tion devices and sensors, and driver information systems.

As a result of changes in executive leadership during 2004, the Company realigned senior manage-
ment responsibilities under four operating segments effective for the fourth quarter 2004. These four
operating segments are aggregated for reporting purposes into the Company’s Vehicle Management &
Power Distribution and Control Devices reportable segments. The Company’s chief operating decision
maker also changed the profit measure used to evaluate the business to ‘‘Income (Loss) Before Income
Taxes and Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change.’’ Because the Company changed the structure of its
internal organization in a manner that caused the composition of its reportable segments to change,
and because the profit measure used to evaluate the business changed, the corresponding information
for prior periods has been restated to conform to the current year reportable segment presentation.

The accounting policies of the Company’s reportable segments are the same as those described in
Note 2, ‘‘Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.’’ The Company’s chief operating decision maker
evaluates the performance of the reportable segments based primarily on revenues from external
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customers, capital expenditures and income (loss) before income taxes and cumulative effect of account-
ing change. Intersegment sales are accounted for on terms similar to those to third parties and are
eliminated upon consolidation.

A summary of financial information by reportable segment is as follows:
For the Years Ended December 31,

Net Sales 2004 2003 2002

Control Devices ******************************** $ 353,892 $ 352,590 $ 396,874
Intersegment Sales***************************** 2,796 2,335 2,035

Control Devices Net Sales********************* 356,688 354,925 398,909

Vehicle Management & Power Distribution ********* 327,903 254,075 239,633
Intersegment Sales***************************** 21,472 19,250 18,109

Vehicle Management & Power Distribution Net
Sales ************************************* 349,375 273,325 257,742

Eliminations *********************************** (24,268) (21,585) (20,144)

Total Consolidated Net Sales ******************** $ 681,795 $ 606,665 $ 636,507

For the Years Ended December 31,(Loss) Income Before Income Taxes and Cumulative Effect of
Accounting Change 2004 2003 2002

Control Devices(A)****************************** $(148,366) $ 48,067 $ 70,170
Vehicle Management & Power Distribution ********* 27,968 13,738 8,364
Corporate Interest ****************************** (24,281) (27,141) (33,101)
Loss on Extinguishment of Debt****************** — — (5,771)
Other Corporate Activities *********************** (4,477) (3,644) (7,344)

Total Consolidated (Loss) Income Before Income
Taxes and Cumulative Effect of Accounting
Change ************************************* $(149,156) $ 31,020 $ 32,318

For the Years Ended December 31,
Depreciation and Amortization 2004 2003 2002

Control Devices ******************************** $ 16,946 $ 14,342 $ 14,881
Vehicle Management & Power Distribution ********* 8,161 7,919 7,409
Corporate Activities ***************************** 309 (73) (390)

Total Consolidated Depreciation and Amortization ** $ 25,416 $ 22,188 $ 21,900

For the Years Ended December 31,
Interest Expense (Income) 2004 2003 2002

Control Devices ******************************** $ (89) $ (118) $ 88
Vehicle Management & Power Distribution ********* 264 628 1,427
Corporate Activities ***************************** 24,281 27,141 33,101

Total Consolidated Interest Expense ************** $ 24,456 $ 27,651 $ 34,616
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For the Years Ended December 31,
Capital Expenditures 2004 2003 2002

Control Devices ******************************** $ 14,586 $ 10,619 $ 10,466
Vehicle Management & Power Distribution ********* 9,170 7,259 4,190
Corporate Activities ***************************** 161 8,504 —

Total Consolidated Capital Expenditures *********** $ 23,917 $ 26,382 $ 14,656

For the Years Ended December 31,
Total Assets 2004 2003 2002

Control Devices ******************************** $ 229,830 $ 413,868 $ 415,781
Vehicle Management & Power Distribution ********* 144,977 105,424 95,283
Corporate(B) *********************************** 240,782 179,553 184,992
Eliminations *********************************** (141,011) (125,844) (131,595)

Total Consolidated Assets *********************** $ 474,578 $ 573,001 $ 564,461

(A) The Company’s 2004 Loss Before Income Taxes for the Control Devices reportable segment includes
a non-cash goodwill impairment charge of $183,450, which was recorded in the fourth quarter of
2004.

(B) Assets located at Corporate consist primarily of cash, deferred taxes and equity investments.

The following table presents the Company’s core product lines by reportable segment, as a percent-
age of net sales:

For the Years Ended
December 31,

2004 2003 2002

Vehicle Management & Power Distribution:
Vehicle electrical power and distribution systems ****************** 28% 25% 23%
Electronic instrumentation and information display products ******** 20 17 15

48% 42% 38%

Control Devices:
Actuator and sensor products *********************************** 27% 31% 36%
Switch and position sensor products ***************************** 25 27 26

52% 58% 62%
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The following table presents net sales and non-current assets for each of the geographic areas in
which the Company operates:

For the Years Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002

Net Sales:
North America ********************************* $549,241 $492,565 $534,807
Europe and other ****************************** 132,554 114,100 101,700

$681,795 $606,665 $636,507

Non-Current Assets:
North America ********************************* $183,604 $340,328 $337,784
Europe and other ****************************** 55,355 53,047 51,002

$238,959 $393,375 $388,786

13. Guarantor Financial Information

The senior notes and the credit facility are fully and unconditionally guaranteed, jointly and severally,
by each of the Company’s existing and future domestic wholly owned subsidiaries (Guarantor Subsidiar-
ies). The Company’s non-U.S. subsidiaries did not guarantee the senior notes and the credit facility
(Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries).

Presented below are summarized condensed consolidating financial statements of the Parent (which
include certain of the Company’s operating units), the Guarantor Subsidiaries, the Non-Guarantor Sub-
sidiaries and the Company on a consolidated basis, as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and for each
of the three years ended December 31, 2004.
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These summarized condensed consolidating financial statements are prepared on the equity
method. Separate financial statements for the Guarantor Subsidiaries are not presented based on
management’s determination that they do not provide additional information that is material to investors.
Therefore, the Guarantor Subsidiaries are combined in the presentation below.

December 31, 2004
Guarantor Non-Guarantor

Parent Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

ASSETS
Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents *** $ 20,363 $ 17 $ 31,952 $ — $ 52,332
Accounts receivable, net ***** 37,396 32,465 34,739 (3,985) 100,615
Inventories, net ************* 15,420 13,098 27,879 — 56,397
Prepaid expenses,

intercompany and other **** (246,033) 233,234 25,792 — 12,993
Deferred income taxes ******* 8,454 4,205 623 — 13,282

Total current assets ******* (164,400) 283,019 120,985 (3,985) 235,619

Property, Plant and Equipment,
net ************************ 54,355 33,553 26,096 — 114,004

Other Assets:
Goodwill******************** 44,585 20,591 — — 65,176
Investments and other, net *** 34,564 462 12,802 (22,849) 24,979
Deferred income taxes ******* 37,773 (3,960) 987 — 34,800
Investment in subsidiaries**** 391,087 — — (391,087) —

Total Assets ****************** $ 397,964 $333,665 $160,870 $(417,921) $474,578

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current Liabilities:

Current portion of long-term
debt ********************* $ — $ — $ 109 $ — $ 109

Accounts payable************ 19,724 17,691 24,100 (3,806) 57,709
Accrued expenses and other** 20,442 14,643 19,578 (179) 54,484

Total current liabilities ***** 40,166 32,334 43,787 (3,985) 112,302

Long-Term Liabilities:
Long-term debt, net of current

portion******************* 200,000 — 22,901 (22,849) 200,052
Other liabilities************** 2,193 — 4,426 — 6,619

Total long-term liabilities *** 202,193 — 27,327 (22,849) 206,671

Shareholders’ Equity*********** 155,605 301,331 89,756 (391,087) 155,605

Total Liabilities and
Shareholders’ Equity********* $ 397,964 $333,665 $160,870 $(417,921) $474,578
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Supplemental condensed consolidating financial statements (continued):

December 31, 2003
Guarantor Non-Guarantor

Parent Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

ASSETS
Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents *** $ 14,660 $ 26 $ 9,456 $ — $ 24,142
Accounts receivable, net ***** 42,585 28,595 21,324 (3,343) 89,161
Inventories, net ************* 22,193 10,432 15,422 — 48,047
Prepaid expenses,

intercompany and other **** (234,958) 215,982 29,396 — 10,420
Deferred income taxes ******* 4,659 2,620 577 — 7,856

Total current assets ******* (150,861) 257,655 76,175 (3,343) 179,626

Property, Plant and Equipment,
net ************************ 61,042 31,390 23,830 — 116,262

Other Assets:
Goodwill******************** 228,035 20,591 — — 248,626
Investments and other, net *** 34,628 548 1,128 (7,817) 28,487
Investment in subsidiaries**** 333,606 — — (333,606) —

Total Assets ****************** $ 506,450 $310,184 $101,133 $(344,766) $573,001

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current Liabilities:

Current portion of long-term
debt ********************* $ — $ — $ 417 $ — $ 417

Accounts payable************ 24,920 16,194 15,779 (3,299) 53,594
Accrued expenses and other** 11,949 20,930 19,948 (44) 52,783

Total current liabilities ***** 36,869 37,124 36,144 (3,343) 106,794

Long-Term Liabilities:
Long-term debt, net of current

portion******************* 207,301 — 761 (7,817) 200,245
Deferred income taxes ******* 16,727 3,082 (1,187) — 18,622
Other liabilities************** 2,147 — 1,787 — 3,934

Total long-term liabilities *** 226,175 3,082 1,361 (7,817) 222,801

Shareholders’ Equity*********** 243,406 269,978 63,628 (333,606) 243,406

Total Liabilities and
Shareholders’ Equity********* $ 506,450 $310,184 $101,133 $(344,766) $573,001
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Supplemental condensed consolidating financial statements (continued):

For the Year Ended December 31, 2004
Guarantor Non-Guarantor

Parent Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

Net Sales ********************* $ 255,243 $223,854 $233,392 $(30,694) $ 681,795
Costs and Expenses:

Cost of goods sold*********** 204,639 151,776 181,877 (30,694) 507,598
Selling, general and

administrative ************* 47,571 36,370 32,376 — 116,317
Goodwill impairment charge *** 183,450 — — — 183,450

Operating (Loss) Income ******** (180,417) 35,708 19,139 — (125,570)

Interest expense, net********* 24,692 — (236) — 24,456
Other (income) expense, net ** (5,138) 3,571 697 — (870)
Equity earnings from

subsidiaries *************** (45,159) — — 45,159 —

(Loss) Income Before Income
Taxes*********************** (154,812) 32,137 18,678 (45,159) (149,156)

(Benefit) Provision for income
taxes********************* (62,309) 609 5,047 — (56,653)

Net (Loss) Income ************* $ (92,503) $ 31,528 $ 13,631 $(45,159) $ (92,503)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003
Guarantor Non-Guarantor

Parent Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

Net Sales********************** $273,412 $205,649 $150,774 $(23,170) $606,665
Costs and Expenses:

Cost of goods sold************ 212,911 145,205 115,689 (23,170) 450,635
Selling, general and

administrative ************** 40,070 31,227 26,363 — 97,660

Operating Income *************** 20,431 29,217 8,722 — 58,370

Interest expense, net ********* 27,675 — (24) — 27,651
Other (income) expense, net *** (2,673) 3,341 (969) — (301)
Equity earnings from

subsidiaries**************** (26,225) — — 26,225 —

Income Before Income Taxes ***** 21,654 25,876 9,715 (26,225) 31,020

Provision for income taxes ***** 275 8,280 1,086 — 9,641

Net Income ******************** $ 21,379 $ 17,596 $ 8,629 $(26,225) $ 21,379
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Supplemental condensed consolidating financial statements (continued):

For the Year Ended December 31, 2002
Guarantor Non-Guarantor

Parent Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

Net Sales********************** $280,221 $254,389 $141,125 $(39,228) $636,507
Costs and Expenses:

Cost of goods sold************ 211,939 184,745 113,732 (39,228) 471,188
Selling, general and

administrative ************** 36,723 31,422 22,854 — 90,999

Operating Income *************** 31,559 38,222 4,539 — 74,320

Interest expense, net ********* 33,542 — 1,074 — 34,616
Loss on extinguishment of debt 5,771 — — — 5,771
Other (income) expense, net *** (1,842) 2,173 1,284 — 1,615
Equity earnings from

subsidiaries**************** 12,929 — — (12,929) —

(Loss) Income Before Income
Taxes and Cumulative Effect of
Accounting Change************ (18,841) 36,049 2,181 12,929 32,318

(Benefit) Provision for income
taxes********************** (3,421) 12,617 2,066 — 11,262

Income Before Cumulative Effect
of Accounting Change ********* (15,420) 23,432 115 12,929 21,056
Cumulative effect of accounting

change, net of tax ********** (33,358) (4,701) (31,775) — (69,834)

Net (Loss) Income ************** $ (48,778) $ 18,731 $ (31,660) $ 12,929 $ (48,778)
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Supplemental condensed consolidating financial statements (continued):

For the Year Ended December 31, 2004
Guarantor Non-Guarantor

Parent Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

Net cash provided by operating
activities ********************** $18,390 $ 9,241 $ 5,612 $ 15,033 $ 48,276

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Capital expenditures ************** (8,647) (9,399) (5,871) — (23,917)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 1 — — — 1
Investment in joint venture and

other ************************* (745) — 43 — (702)
Collection of loan receivable from

joint venture ******************* 4,695 — — — 4,695

Net cash used by investing
activities ******************** (4,696) (9,399) (5,828) — (19,923)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Repayments of long-term debt ***** (7,300) — 21,809 (15,033) (524)
Share option activity ************** (557) 149 28 — (380)
Other financing costs ************* (134) — — — (134)

Net cash used by financing
activities ******************** (7,991) 149 21,837 (15,033) (1,038)

Effect of exchange rate changes on
cash and cash equivalents ****** — — 875 — 875

Net change in cash and cash
equivalents ******************** 5,703 (9) 22,496 — 28,190

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of period ************* 14,660 26 9,456 — 24,142

Cash and cash equivalents at end
of period ********************** $20,363 $ 17 $31,952 $ — $ 52,332
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Supplemental condensed consolidating financial statements (continued):

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003
Guarantor Non-Guarantor

Parent Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

Net cash provided by operating
activities******************** $ 53,211 $ 4,755 $ 20,180 $(5,792) $ 72,354

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Capital expenditures ************* (16,047) (4,959) (5,376) — (26,382)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 386 — 826 — 1,212
Other*************************** (15) — 12 — (3)

Net cash used by investing
activities******************** (15,676) (4,959) (4,538) — (25,173)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Repayments of long-term debt***** (41,940) — (15,947) 5,792 (52,095)
Share option activity ************* 368 63 13 — 444

Net cash used by financing
activities******************** (41,572) 63 (15,934) 5,792 (51,651)

Effect of exchange rate changes on
cash and cash equivalents****** (1) — 1,378 — 1,377

Net change in cash and cash
equivalents ******************* (4,038) (141) 1,086 — (3,093)

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of period ************ 18,698 167 8,370 — 27,235

Cash and cash equivalents at end
of period ********************* $ 14,660 $ 26 $ 9,456 $ — $ 24,142
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Supplemental condensed consolidating financial statements (continued):

For the Year Ended December 31, 2002
Guarantor Non-Guarantor

Parent Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

Net cash provided by operating
activities ******************** $ 33,971 $ 48,076 $14,488 $(910) $ 95,625

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Capital expenditures************ (7,505) (4,972) (2,179) — (14,656)
Proceeds from sale of fixed

assets ********************** 221 — 90 — 311
Other ************************* (39) — (393) 434 2

Net cash used by investing
activities ****************** (7,323) (4,972) (2,482) 434 (14,343)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from issuance of senior

notes *********************** 200,000 — — — 200,000
Extinguishment of revolving facility (37,641) — — — (37,641)
Extinguishment of term debt***** (226,139) — — — (226,139)
Net repayments under revolving

facilities********************* (13,019) — (1,378) — (14,397)
Proceeds from long-term debt**** 100,000 — — — 100,000
Repayments of long-term debt *** (15,897) (42,966) (6,643) 476 (65,030)
Other financing costs *********** (10,694) — — — (10,694)
Interest rate swap termination

costs *********************** (5,274) — — — (5,274)

Net cash used by financing
activities ****************** (8,664) (42,966) (8,021) 476 (59,175)

Effect of exchange rate changes
on cash and cash equivalents — — 759 — 759

Net change in cash and cash
equivalents ****************** 17,984 138 4,744 — 22,866

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of period *********** 714 29 3,626 — 4,369

Cash and cash equivalents at end
of period ******************** $ 18,698 $ 167 $ 8,370 $ — $ 27,235
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14. Unaudited Quarterly Financial Data

The following is a condensed summary of actual quarterly results of operations for 2004 and 2003:
Quarter Ended

Dec. 31 Sep. 30 June 30 Mar. 31
(In millions, except per share data)

2004
Net sales ******************************************** $ 163.4 $164.3 $178.1 $176.0
Gross profit(A) **************************************** 41.5 39.5 45.4 47.8
Operating (loss) income******************************** (175.6) 10.6 19.6 19.8
Net (loss) income ************************************* $(114.9) $ 3.9 $ 9.3 $ 9.2

Basic net (loss) income per share(B) ******************** $ (5.07) $ 0.17 $ 0.41 $ 0.41

Diluted net (loss) income per share(B) ******************* $ (5.07) $ 0.17 $ 0.41 $ 0.40

2003
Net sales ******************************************** $ 151.3 $140.8 $155.0 $159.6
Gross profit(A) **************************************** 40.4 34.4 40.3 40.9
Operating income ************************************* 14.0 11.1 16.2 17.1
Net income******************************************* $ 5.1 $ 3.1 $ 6.2 $ 7.0

Basic net income per share(B)************************** $ 0.23 $ 0.14 $ 0.28 $ 0.31

Diluted net income per share(B) ************************ $ 0.22 $ 0.14 $ 0.28 $ 0.31

(A) Gross profit represents net sales less cost of goods sold.

(B) Earnings per share for the year may not equal the sum of the four fiscal quarters earnings per share
due to changes in basic and diluted shares outstanding.
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Balance at Charged to Balance at
Beginning Costs and End of
of Period Expenses Write-offs Period

Allowance for doubtful accounts:
Year ended December 31, 2002 ********* $1,742 $1,773 $ 495 $3,020
Year ended December 31, 2003 ********* 3,020 1,260 1,376 2,904
Year ended December 31, 2004 ********* 2,904 1,206 219 3,891

Exchange
Net rate

Balance at additions fluctuations Balance at
Beginning charged to and other End of
of Period income items Period

Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets:
Year ended December 31, 2002 ********* $1,293 $ 831 $(610) $1,514
Year ended December 31, 2003 ********* 1,514 674 369 2,557
Year ended December 31, 2004 ********* 2,557 3,040 216 5,813
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

There has been no disagreement between the management of the Company and its independent
auditors on any matter of accounting principles or practices of financial statement disclosures, or
auditing scope or procedure.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

As of December 31, 2004, an evaluation was performed under the supervision and with the
participation of the Company’s management, including the CEO and CFO, of the effectiveness of the
design and operation of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures. Based on that evaluation,
the Company’s management, including the CEO and CFO, concluded that the Company’s disclosure
controls and procedures were effective as of December 31, 2004.

There were no changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting during the year
ended December 31, 2004 that materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over
financial reporting, as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f). In evaluating
the Company’s internal control over financial reporting, management has adopted the framework in
Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission. Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including
the principal executive officer and principal financial officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effec-
tiveness of our internal control over financial reporting, as of December 31, 2004. Based on our
evaluation under the framework in Internal Control — Integrated Framework, our management has con-
cluded that our internal control over financial reporting is effective as of December 31, 2004.

Our management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting
as of December 31, 2004 has been audited by Ernst & Young LLP, an independent registered public
accounting firm, as stated in their report, which is included herein.

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Stoneridge, Inc.

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Report
on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, that Stoneridge, Inc. and Subsidiaries maintained effective
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on criteria established in
Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). Stoneridge Inc. and Subsidiaries’ management is responsible
for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effective-
ness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on manage-
ment’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control over
financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Over-
sight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in
all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial
reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effec-
tiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
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A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the mainte-
nance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions
of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted account-
ing principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance
with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the com-
pany’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the
risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that Stoneridge, Inc. and Subsidiaries maintained effec-
tive internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, is fairly stated, in all material
respects, based on the COSO criteria. Also, in our opinion, Stoneridge, Inc. and Subsidiaries maintained,
in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004,
based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 and the
related consolidated statements of operations, shareholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2004 of Stoneridge, Inc. and Subsidiaries and our report
dated March 8, 2005 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Cleveland, Ohio
March 8, 2005

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None

PART III

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The information required by this Item 10 is incorporated by reference to the information under the
heading or subheadings ‘‘Election of Directors,’’ ‘‘Audit Committee,’’ ‘‘Section 16(a) Beneficial Owner-
ship Reporting Compliance’’ and ‘‘Corporate Governance’’ contained in the Company’s Proxy State-
ment in connection with its Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on April 18, 2005, and the
information under the heading ‘‘Executive Officers’’ in Part I of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Item 11 is incorporated by reference to the information under the
heading ‘‘Executive Compensation’’ contained in the Company’s Proxy Statement in connection with its
Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on April 18, 2005.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The information required by this Item 12 (other than the information required by Item 201(d) of
Regulation S-K) is incorporated by reference to the information under the heading ‘‘Security Ownership of
Certain Beneficial Owners and Management’’ contained in the Company’s Proxy Statement in connec-
tion with its Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on April 18, 2005. The information required by
Item 201(d) of Regulation S-K is set forth in Item 5 of this report.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

The information required by this Item 13 is incorporated by reference to the information under the
heading ‘‘Certain Relationships and Related Transactions’’ contained in the Company’s Proxy Statement
in connection with its Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on April 18, 2005.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this Item 14 is incorporated by reference to the information under the
heading ‘‘Other Matters’’ contained in the Company’s Proxy Statement in connection with its Annual
Meeting of Shareholders to be held on April 18, 2005.

PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a) The following documents are filed as part of this Form 10-K.
Page in

Form 10-K

1. Consolidated Financial Statements:
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm ****************** 24
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 ********* 25
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Years Ended December 31,

2004, 2003 and 2002 ********************************************** 26
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31,

2004, 2003 and 2002 ********************************************** 27
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity for the Years Ended

December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002********************************* 28
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements ***************************** 29

2. Financial Statement Schedule:
Schedule II — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts ************************** 60

3. Exhibits:
See the List of Exhibits on the Index to Exhibits following the signature page

All other schedules are omitted because they are not applicable or the required information is shown
in the consolidated financial statements or notes thereto.
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(b) The exhibits listed on the Index to Exhibits are filed as part of or incorporated by reference into
this report.

(c) Additional Financial Statement Schedules.

None.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly
authorized.

STONERIDGE, INC.

Date: March 11, 2005 /s/ JOSEPH M. MALLAK

Joseph M. Mallak
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below
by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the date indicated.

Date: March 11, 2005 /s/ D.M. DRAIME
D.M. Draime
Chairman of the Board of Directors

Date: March 11, 2005 /s/ GERALD V. PISANI
Gerald V. Pisani
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: March 11, 2005 /s/ AVERY S. COHEN 
Avery S. Cohen
Secretary and Director

Date: March 11, 2005 /s/ RICHARD E. CHENEY 
Richard E. Cheney
Director

Date: March 11, 2005 /s/ JOHN C. COREY 
John C. Corey
Director

Date: March 11, 2005 /s/ SHELDON J. EPSTEIN 
Sheldon J. Epstein
Director

Date: March 11, 2005 /s/ DOUGLAS C. JACOBS 
Douglas C. Jacobs
Director

Date: March 11, 2005 /s/ WILLIAM M. LASKY 
William M. Lasky
Director

Date: March 11, 2005 /s/ EARL L. LINEHAN 
Earl L. Linehan
Director
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Exhibit
Number Exhibit

3.1 Second Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Company (incorporated by refer-
ence to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No. 333-33285)).

3.2 Amended and Restated Code of Regulations of the Company (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No. 333-33285)).

4.1 Common Share Certificate (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1997).

4.2 Indenture dated as of May 1, 2002 among Stoneridge, Inc. as Issuer, Stoneridge Control
Devices, Inc. and Stoneridge Electronics, Inc., as Guarantors, and Fifth Third Bank, as trustee
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
May 7, 2002).

10.1 Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Registra-
tion Statement on Form S-1 (No. 333-33285)).

10.3 Lease Agreement between Stoneridge, Inc. and Hunters Square, Inc., with respect to the Com-
pany’s division headquarters for the Alphabet Division (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4
to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1999).

10.4 Credit Agreement dated as of May 1, 2002 among Stoneridge, Inc., as Borrower, the Lending
Institutions Named Therein, as Lenders, National City Bank, as Administrative Agent, a Joint
Lead Arranger and Collateral Agent, Deutsche Bank Securities Inc., as a Joint Lead Arranger,
Comerica Bank and PNC Bank, National Association, as the Co-Documentation Agents (incorpo-
rated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 7,
2002).

10.5 Purchase Agreement dated as of May 1, 2002 among Stoneridge Inc., Stoneridge Control
Devices Inc., Stoneridge Electronics Inc. and Deutsche Bank Securities Inc., J.P. Morgan Securi-
ties Inc., Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated and NatCity Investments Inc. (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 7, 2002).

10.6 Registration Rights Agreement dated as of May 1, 2002 among Stoneridge Inc., Stoneridge
Control Devices Inc., Stoneridge Electronics Inc. and Deutsche Bank Securities Inc., J.P. Morgan
Securities Inc., Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated and NatCity Investments Inc. (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 7, 2002).

10.7 Amendment No. 1 dated as of January 31, 2003 to Credit Agreement dated as of May 1, 2002
among Stoneridge, Inc. as Borrower, the Lending Institutions Named Therein, as Lenders,
National City Bank, as Administrative Agent, a Joint Lead Arranger and Collateral Agent,
Deutsche Bank Securities Inc., as a Joint Lead Arranger, Comerica Bank and PNC Bank, National
Association, as the Co-Documentation Agents (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002).

10.8 Proposed Form of Tax Indemnification Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to
the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No. 333-33285)).

10.9 Form of Change in Control Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to the Com-
pany’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1998).

10.10 Amendment to Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to the Company’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003).

10.11 Severance and Consulting Agreement for Cloyd J. Abruzzo, dated November 28, 2003 (incorpo-
rated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
December 9, 2003).

10.12 Consulting Agreement for Sten Forseke, dated November 2003 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 99.3 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 9, 2003).
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Exhibit
Number Exhibit

10.13 Amendment No. 2 dated as of August 6, 2004 to Credit Agreement dated as of May 1, 2002
among Stoneridge, Inc. as Borrower, the Lending Institutions Named Therein, as Lenders,
National City Bank, as Administrative Agent, a Joint Lead Arranger and Collateral Agent,
Deutsche Bank Securities Inc., as a Joint Lead Arranger, Comerica Bank and PNC Bank, National
Association, as the Co-Documentation Agents (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2004).

10.14 Severance Agreement and Release between the Company and Kevin P. Bagby, dated August 31,
2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K
filed on September 7, 2004).

10.15 Director Share Option Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 of the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-8 (No. 333-96953).

10.16 Form of Long-Term Incentive Plan Share Option Agreement, filed herewith.
10.17 Form of Directors’ Share Option Plan Share Option Agreement, filed herewith.
10.18 Form of Long-Term Incentive Plan Restricted Shares Grant Agreement, filed herewith.
14.1 Code of Ethics for Senior Financial Officers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 14.1 to the

Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003).
16.1 Letter from Arthur Andersen LLP to the Securities and Exchange Commission regarding their

dismissal as the Company’s independent accountant (incorporated by reference to the Com-
pany’s Current Report on Form 8-K, including Exhibit 16.1, as of May 21, 2002).

21.1 Subsidiaries and Affiliates of the Company, (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 21.1 to the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003).

23.1 Statement Regarding Lack of Consent from Arthur Andersen, LLP, Independent Public Account-
ants (incorporated by reference to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2002).

23.2 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm, filed herewith.
31.1 Chief Executive Officer certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,

filed herewith.
31.2 Chief Financial Officer certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,

filed herewith.
32.1 Chief Executive Officer certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to

Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, filed herewith.
32.2 Chief Financial Officer certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to

Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, filed herewith.
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EXHIBIT 23.2

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference of our reports dated March 8, 2005, with respect to
the consolidated financial statements and schedule of Stoneridge, Inc. and Subsidiaries, management’s
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, and the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting of Stoneridge, Inc. and Subsidiaries included in this Annual
Report (Form 10-K) for the year ended December 31, 2004, in the following Registration Statements:

Registration Number Description of Registration Statement

333-96953 Form S-8 — Stoneridge, Inc. Director’s Share Option Plan
333-72176 Form S-8 — Stoneridge, Inc. Director’s Share Option Plan
333-72178 Form S-8 — Stoneridge, Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan
333-91175 Form S-8 — Stoneridge, Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Cleveland, Ohio
March 8, 2005



EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES–OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Gerald V. Pisani, President and Chief Executive Officer, of Stoneridge, Inc. (the ‘‘Company’’),
certify that:

(1) I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of the Company;

(2) Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circum-
stances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period
covered by this report;

(3) Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in
this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations
and cash flows of the Company as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

(4) The Company’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))
and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f)) for the Company and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information
relating to the Company, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being
prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures and
presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls
and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the Company’s internal control over financial report-
ing that occurred during the Company’s fourth quarter that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting; and

(5) The Company’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evalua-
tion of internal control over financial reporting, to the Company’s auditors and the audit
committee of the Company’s board of directors:

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Com-
pany’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have
a significant role in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ GERALD V. PISANI

Gerald V. Pisani, President and Chief Executive Officer
March 11, 2005



EXHIBIT 31.2

I, Joseph M. Mallak, Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, of Stoneridge, Inc. (the ‘‘Company’’),
certify that:

(1) I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of the Company;

(2) Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circum-
stances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period
covered by this report;

(3) Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in
this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations
and cash flows of the Company as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

(4) The Company’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))
and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f)) for the Company and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information
relating to the Company, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being
prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures and
presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls
and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the Company’s internal control over financial report-
ing that occurred during the Company’s fourth quarter that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting; and

(5) The Company’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evalua-
tion of internal control over financial reporting, to the Company’s auditors and the audit
committee of the Company’s board of directors:

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Com-
pany’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have
a significant role in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ JOSEPH M. MALLAK
Joseph M. Mallak, Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
March 11, 2005



EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Gerald V. Pisani, President and Chief Executive Officer, of Stoneridge, Inc. (the ‘‘Company’’),
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002, that:

(1) the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2004 (‘‘the
Report’’) which this certification accompanies fully complies with the requirements of Sec-
tion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m(a) or 78o(d)); and

(2) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company.

/s/ GERALD V. PISANI

Gerald V. Pisani, President and Chief Executive Officer
March 11, 2005

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002 has been provided to Stoneridge, Inc. and will be retained by Stoneridge, Inc. and furnished to the
Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.



EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Joseph M. Mallak, Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, of Stoneridge, Inc. (the ‘‘Company’’),
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002, that:

(1) the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2004 (‘‘the
Report’’) which this certification accompanies fully complies with the requirements of Sec-
tion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m(a) or 78o(d)); and

(2) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company.

/s/ JOSEPH M. MALLAK

Joseph M. Mallak, Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
March 11, 2005

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002 has been provided to Stoneridge, Inc. and will be retained by Stoneridge, Inc. and furnished to the
Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.





EXECUTIVE OFFICERS GROUP OPERATING EXECUTIVES

FOCUS ON > management

Left to r ight

Edward F. Mosel
Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer

Joseph M. Mallak
Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

Thomas A. Beaver
Vice President of Global Sales and Systems Engineering

Left to r ight

Michael J. Bagby
Vice President and General Manager of Alphabet Group

Vincent F. Suttmeier
Vice President and General Manager of Switch and Sensor Products Group

Mark J. Tervalon
Vice President and General Manager of Stoneridge Electronics Group

Peter E. Manzon
Vice President of Administration 

Andrew M. Oakes
Vice President and General Manager of Actuator and Sensor Products Group

 



1 Member of the Audit Committee
2  Member of the Compensation Committee
3  Member of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Left to r ight

Michael J. Bagby
Vice President and General Manager of Alphabet Group

Vincent F. Suttmeier
Vice President and General Manager of Switch and Sensor Products Group

Mark J. Tervalon
Vice President and General Manager of Stoneridge Electronics Group

Peter E. Manzon
Vice President of Administration 

Andrew M. Oakes
Vice President and General Manager of Actuator and Sensor Products Group

 

Front row, left to r ight

Richard E. Cheney 1,2

Psychoanalyst in private practice and Retired 
Chairman of the Board, Hill & Knowlton, Inc.,
a public relations firm
Director since 1988

Gerald V. Pisani
President, Chief Executive Officer  
Director since 2004

D.M. Draime
Chairman of the Board and Assistant Secretary
Director since 1988

Avery S. Cohen 

Secretary
Partner, Baker & Hostetler LLP, a law firm
Director since 1988

Back row, left to r ight

Douglas C. Jacobs 1
Executive Vice President–Finance,
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of the Cleve-
land Browns, a professional football team
Director since 2004

William M. Lasky 2,3

Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer,
JLG Industries, Inc., a diversified construction 
and industrial equipment manufacturer
Director since 2004

John C. Corey 1

President and Chief Executive Officer,
Safety Components International,
a supplier of air bags and components
Director since 2004

Earl L. Linehan 2,3 

President, Woodbrook Capital, Inc.,
a venture capital and investment firm
Director since 1988

Sheldon J. Epstein 1,3

Managing Member, Epstein, Weber & Conover, PLC,
a public accounting firm
Director since 1988

1 Member of the Audit Committee
2  Member of the Compensation Committee
3  Member of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee



2005 > corporate information
CORPORATE OFFICES

Stoneridge, Inc.
9400 East Market Street
Warren, Ohio 44484
330/856–2443
www.stoneridge.com

STOCK EXCHANGE

Common Shares of Stoneridge are traded on the New York Stock 
Exchange (NYSE) under the symbol SRI. The historical high and 
low prices of the Company’s Common Shares are as follows:

Quarter Ended    High    Low

2004 March 31  $ 17.97  $ 13.20
  June 30  $ 17.44  $ 14.02
  September 30  $ 17.19  $ 13.20
  December 31  $ 16.75  $ 12.73

2003 March 31  $ 15.55  $ 8.84
  June 30  $ 14.07  $ 9.50
  September 30  $ 17.29  $ 13.45
  December 31  $ 15.73  $ 12.28

The Company had approximately 1,400 shareholders of record on 
February 18, 2005.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has not declared any cash dividends since our ini-
tial public offering in 1997. The Company presently expects to 
retain all future earnings for use in its business and therefore 
does not anticipate paying any cash dividends in the foreseeable 
future. In addition, both the Company’s senior notes and credit 
agreement impose limitations on the amounts of dividends that 
can be paid.

TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR

National City Bank acts as the Transfer Agent and Registrar for 
the Company. Questions on change of ownership, total shares 
owned, consolidation of accounts and other such matters should 
be sent to:
 National City Bank
 Corporate Trust Operations
 Third Floor, North Annex
 4100 West 150th Street
 Cleveland, Ohio 44135–1385

INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Ernst & Young LLP, Cleveland, Ohio, is the independent registered
public accounting fi rm retained by the Company.

ANNUAL MEETING

The Annual Meeting of Shareholders will take place at 10:00 a.m., 
Monday, April 18, 2005, in Warren, Ohio.

A notice of the meeting, together with a form of proxy and a proxy state-
ment, will be mailed to shareholders on or about March 11, 2005.

FORM 10-K

Stoneridge’s Form 10-K fi led with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission (SEC) for the year ended December 31, 2004, is 
available without cost to shareholders through our website at 
www.stoneridge.com or upon written request to:
 Investor Relations Department
 Stoneridge, Inc.
 9400 East Market Street
 Warren, Ohio 44484

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s Corporate Governance Guidelines, Code of Busi-
ness Conduct and Ethics, Code of Ethics for Senior Financial 
Offi cers, Whistleblower Policy and Procedures, and the charters 
of the Board’s Audit, Compensation and Nominating and Cor-
porate Governance Committees are posted on the Company’s 
website. Written copies of these documents will be available to 
any shareholder upon request by contacting Investor Relations.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Security analysts, investment professionals and shareholders may re-
quest information and should direct their business-related inquiries to:
 Joseph M. Mallak, Chief Financial Offi cer
 330/856–2443

WORLDWIDE FACILITIES

North America
 Boston, Massachusetts Canton, Massachusetts
 Chihuahua, Mexico El Paso, Texas
 Juarez, Mexico Lexington, Ohio
 Monclova, Mexico Novi, Michigan
 Orwell, Ohio Portland, Indiana
 Sarasota, Florida Warren, Ohio

Europe
 Bayonne, France Cheltenham, England
 Dundee, Scotland Madrid, Spain 
 Mitcheldean, England Northampton, England
 Orebro, Sweden Stockholm, Sweden
 Stuttgart, Germany Tallinn, Estonia 

South America
 Sao Paulo, Brazil

Asia
 New Delhi, India Shanghai, China

EMPLOYEES

As of December 31, 2004, the Company had approximately 
6,000 employees.

CEO AND CFO CERTIFICATIONS

In 2004, Stoneridge’s chief executive offi cer (CEO) provided to the 
NYSE the annual CEO certifi cation regarding the Company’s com-
pliance with the NYSE’s corporate governance listing standards. 
In addition, Stoneridge’s CEO and chief fi nancial offi cer (CFO) fi led 
with the SEC all required certifi cations regarding the quality of the 
Company’s public disclosures in its fi scal 2004 reports.

DESIGN BY DIX & EATON
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